
^ -^823
toXeuJUS —

SELAH CITY COUNCIL

4:00pm January 13, 2015
3:00pm Study Session - Update on City projects

and presentation on Volunteer Park



Selah City Council
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, January 13, 2015
4:00pm
City Council Chambers

Mayor:
Mayor Pro Tern:
Council Members:

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, Washington 98942

Interim City Administrator:
City Attorney:
Clerk/Treasurer:

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

G.

AGENDA

Call to Order -Mayor Gawlik

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/Presentations

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

1. Oral

None

John Gawlik

Brooke Finch

Paul Overby
John Tiemey
Dave Smeback

Allen Schmid

Roy Sample
Jane Williams

Joe Henne

Bob Noe

Dale Novobielski

This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Council concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so
now. Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The l^ayor Pro Tern reserves the nght to place a
bme limiton each person asking to be heard.

2.

Joe Henne

Written

a. December 2014 Monthly Report for Building Permits, Animal Control and Code
Enforcement

H. Proclamations/Announcements

I. Consent Agenda

None

All items listed with an asterisk (*} are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion, without
discussion. Should any Council Member or member of the audience request that any item of the Consent Agenda be
considered separately, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and become a part of the regular Agenda.

Monica Lake * 1.

DaleN. * 2.

J. Public Hearings

K. New Business

Mayor Gawlik I.
Mayor Gawlik 2.
Dennis Davison 3.

Approval of Minutes: December 9, 2014 Study Session & Council Meeting
Approval of Claims & Payroll

None

Selection of a Mayor Pro Tempore for Calendar Year 2015
Board & Committee Assignments for 2015
Proposed Selah Municipal Code Amendments: Chapter 10.28, Table A-5, Chapter
10.28.040 Regulatory Notes, and Chapter 10.12.040



L. Old Business

M. Resolutions

Andrew Potter * 1.

Joe Henne 2.

Joe Henne 3.

Joe Henne 4.

Joe Henne 5.

Gary Hanna 6.

N.

Dale

Novobielski

Dennis Davison

Ordinances

1.

2.

O.

1. Oral

None

Resolution establishing January 27, 2015 as the public hearing date to consider the
adoption of the "Selah Transit Development Plan"
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the 2013 DWSRF Water System
Improvements as complete and approve final Progress Estimate No. 8 and Project
Acceptance
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal Advertising Contract with the
Yakima Herald-Republic for the 2015 Calendar Year
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Business Licensing Services Agreement
between the City of Selah and the State of Washington Department of Revenue
Business Licensing Services
Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with
Durant Development Services, Inc. for professional planning services
Resolution declaring approximately 4,500 feet of 2 '/a" fire hose, 12 "D" size steel
oxygen cylinders, and miscellaneous office equipment as surplus

Ordinance Amending the 2015 Budget for Demolition of Structures on 110,112 &
202 Park Avenue and 105 Selah Avenue

Ordinance Amending Sections of Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A, Chapter
10.28.040, Regulatory Notes, and Chapter 10.12.040 of the Selah Municipal Code

Communications

This is a public meeting. Ifyou wish to address the Council concerning any matter that Is not on the agenda, you may do so now.
Please come forward to the podium, stating your name for the record. The Mayor Pro Tern reserves the right to place a time limit
on each person asking to be heard.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor
2. Council Members

3. Departmental
4. Boards

Monica Lake a. Parks Board Minutes - November 3, 2014
CapriseCroo b. Planning Commission Minutes-November 4, 2014

Q. Executive Session

R.

1. 15 Minute Session - Potential Litigation ROW 42.30.110 (1)(i)

Adjournment

Next Study Session
Next Regular Meeting

January 27, 2013
January 27, 2013

liach ilem on ihe Council Agenda is covered by an
Agenda llcm Sheel (AIS)

A yellow AIS indicates an action item.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

1/13/2015 G-2a

Title: December 2014 Monthly Report for Building Permits, Animal Control
and Code Enforcement

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: Not applicable

Funding Source: Not applicable

Staff Recommendation:

Informational only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Attached are the Building Permit, Animal Control and Code Enforcement

Reports for December, 2014.

Recommended Motion:

Informational only.



December 2014 Building Permit Report

No. Issue Date Project Address Type Master

Plan

Fees

5860 12/4/2014 Selah School District 801 N First Street Fire Sprinkler System $116.71

6157 12/11/2014 Sprint Spectnnn 141 E. Naches Ave. New Commercial/Add Microwave Dish $173.94

6255 12/8/2014 Luke & Brooke Ziikle 1000 Goodlander Circle Replace Windows $136.24

6256 12/8/2014 Ownes Family Limited Partnership 111 E Fremont Mechanical-gas piping $30.54

6257 12/8/2014 Stuart & Patti Petri 902 Goodlander Dr. Fumace Replacement $57.21

6258 12/15/2014 BBS Selah 506 S. First Street Footing/pedestal/pole for new sign $52.82

6259 12/8/2014 BBS Selah 506 S. First Street Sign $98.55

6260 12/8/2014 Thind Panninder 301 S. First Street Sign $98.55

6261 12/8/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot 4A (181425-33422) Building $3,858.20

6262 12/16/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot 4A (181425-33422) Plumbing $188.90

6263 12/9/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot 4A (181425-33422) Mechanical $137.32

6264 12/9/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1505 W. First Ave. Remodel/Addition $200.16

6265 12/9/2014 BBS Selah LLC 502 S. First Street Tenant Improvement/Subway/New Commercial $890.43

6266 12/17/2014 BBS Selah LLC 502 S. First Street Tenant Improvement/Subway/Pluiubing $188.90

6267 12/10/2014 BBS Selah LLC 502 S. First Street Tenant Improvement/Subway/Meclianical $81.93

6268 12/17/2014 Craig Anderson 1215 Heritage Hills Dr. Remodel/Addition -add to original deck $221.87

6275 12/29/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot 13(181425-33423) Building $3,858.20

6276 12/19/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot IB (181425-33423) Plumbing $188.90

6277 12/30/2014 Torkelson Construction Lot 16(181425-33423) Mechanical $137.32

6278 12/22/2014 Rita Hendrickson Trust 6 Enterprise Dr. Remodel/Add garage $351.70

6279 12/29/2014 Bill Harris 608 S. First St. Sign/replace cabinet $98.55

6280 12/29/2014 Brian Harris 701 S. First St. Footing/Foundation only (Pole Building) $0.00

6281 12/29/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1101W. Goodlander Building IRC2012-3 $4,160.87

6282 12/29/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1101 W. Goodlander Plumbing $199.63

6283 12/29/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1101 W. Goodlander Mechanical $147.22

6284 12/26/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1101 W. Goodlander UG Sprinklers $39.64

6285 12/29/2014 Columbia Ridge LLC 1101 W. Goodlander Excavation/Grading $55.67

6286 12/26/2014 GrafInvestments, Inc. 217 S. 3rd St. Commercial/Replace deck and railing $348.36

6287 12/29/2014 Brian Harris/Northwest Post Frame 701 S. First St. New Commercial (Pole Building) $1,341.79

6289 12/29/2014 Brian Hanis/All-State Electric 701 S. First St. New Mechanical - Heater/Air Units $101.45

TOTAL $17,561.57



ANIMAL CONTROL
DECEMBER 2014

ADDRESS DATE HRS PROBLEM ACTION TAKEN

800 BLKWHOMEAVE 1ST 1 LOOSE DOG PUT BACK IN YARD-CONTACTED OWNER

100 BLK NAGLER 3RD 0 STRAY DOG NOT IN CITY LIMITS-GAVE CALLER COUNTY #

400 BLK S 3RD 4TH 0.5 FOUND DOG RETURNED TO OWNER - 200 BLK PARK AVE.

1400 BLK W ORCHARD AVE. 4TH 0.5 BARKING DOG OWNERS FATHER PUT DOG INSIDE GARAGE

300 BLK S 3RD STREET STH 0.5 LOOSE DOG PUT BACK IN YARD-CONTACTED OWNER

1000 BLK SELAH LOOP 5TH 0.5 AMEND PERMIT FOR ANIMALS GRANTED AFTER DISCUSSION WITH JOE HENNE

200 BLK N WENAS IITH 0.5 DEAD DOG ON SIDEWALK PICK UP AND DISPOSE OF DOG

500 BLK N IITH STREET 17TH 0.5 DEAD BIRD IN ROADWAY PICKUP AND DISPOSE OF BIRD

400 BLK W FREMONT 19TH 0.5 NUISANCE-BARKING DOG NOT OUTSIDE

300 BLK S 3RD STREET 21ST 1 FOUND DOG TOOK TO HUMANE SHELTER

1000 BLK GOODLANDER DR. 22ND 0.5 LOOSE DOG FOUND OWNER-RETURNED DOG

500BLK HARRIS AVE. 23RD 0.5 LOOSE DOG DOG NOT OUTSIDE-CONTACTED OWNER

1300 BLKJESSICIADR. 23RD 0.5 BARKING DOG DOG NOT BARKING- LISTENED FOR 15 MIN

200 BLKHILLCREST 24TH 0.5 LOOSE DOG DOG NOT FOUND

700 BLK N WENAS 24TH 1 STRAY DOG TOOK TO HUMANE SHELTER

1100 BLK CRESTVIEW DR. 24TH 0.5 BARKING DOG OWNER NOT HOME-LEFT CARD TO CALL ME

100 BLK HIGHUND CT. 31ST 0.5 SMALL PUPPY OUTSIDE DOG NOT OUTSIDE

10 BLK N IITH 31ST 0.5 VICIOUS DOG IN MOTORHOME NO SIGN OF DOG ANYWHERE

1700 BLK NACHES AVE 31ST 0.5 BULL DOG OUTSIDE SEVERAL HRS DOG NOT OUTSIDE UPON MY ARIVAL



ADDRESS

200 BLKENACHESAVE.

100 BLK HIGHLAND CT.

600 BLKS 1ST STREET

300 BLK N lOTH STREET

800 BLK W HOME AVE.

200 BLK E BARTLETT AVE

300 BLK SIOTH STREET

100 BLLK E BARTLETT AVE

10 BLK N IITH STREER

CODE ENFORCEMENT

VIOLATION / COMPLAINT

INDUSTRIAL NOISE COMPLAINT

WEEDS/DEBRIS

VEHICLES PARKED ON SIDEWALK

FENCE FALLING OVER

DEBRIS

SIGN OBSTRUCTING TRAFFIC

TRUCK WITH DEBRIS

ABANDONED VEHICLE ON EMPTY LOT

MOTORHOME PARKED IN DRIVEWAY

DECEMBER 2014

ACTION TAKEN

ADVISED THERE ARE NO RESTRICTIONS FOR NOISE

CALLED OWNER AND ADVISED OF COMPLAINT

SPOKE WITH OWNER-WILL MOVE

CORRECTION NOTICE SENT

OWNER REMOVED

SPOKE WITH OWNER-WILL MOVE

TRUCK G.O.A

CONTACTED REGISTERED OWNER-MOVED

MOTORHOME PARKED LEGALLY



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 I-l

Title: Approval of Minutes; December 9, 2014 Study Session & Council
Meeting

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Minutes

Background / Findings & Facts:

See Minutes for details.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



Study Session Minutes
Selah City Council
December 9,2014

3:30pm

Mayor Pro Tern Finch opened the Study Session. She stated that the scheduled session with
SuperintendentBacklund had been postponed to allow Council to discuss the potential utility tax
increase.

Police Chief Hayes briefly discussed the reasons behind his request for an evidence technician,
which included reducing potential liability for the City by putting the correct person into the
correct job, having a person in charge of the evidence room who isn't attached to evidence in that
room to prevent a defense attomey from saying the individual is biased, proper disposal of items
after they've been kept for a certain amount of time, and having that person coordinate
community events. He also talked about the need for an amortization schedule for patrol
vehicles, as thirteen of the eighteen vehicles are over 70,000 miles, with most over 100,000.

Fire ChiefHanna said that they have never had an amortization schedule for vehicles, adding that
twelve oftheir twenty vehicles are twenty plus years old, with five of those over thirty years old.
He also talked about the need to get into compliance with the turnout gear, which will take three
years with the budget as it currently stands. He noted that a percentage of the amount that would
be allotted to his department would also be placed into the equipment reserve fund for future
items such as a conversion to digital radios.

The Study Session ended at 3:54pm.

Page 1of I Selah City Councii Study Session Minutes 12/9/2014



Regular Meeting
Selah Council Chambers

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

A. Call to Order

B. Roll Call

Members Present:

Members Excused:

Staff Present:

E.

F.

G.

1. Oral

City ofSelah
Council Minutes

December 9,2014

Mayor Pro Tem Finch called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

Paul Overby; John Tiemey; Dave Smeback; Allen Schmid; Brooke Finch;
Roy Sample; Jane Williams

Mayor Gawlik

Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator; Bob Noe, City Attorney; Gary
Hanna, Fire Chief; Rick Hayes, Police Chief; Eric Steen, Deputy Police
Chief; Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer; Dennis Davison, community
Planner; Charlie Brown, Recreation Manager; Andrew Potter, Assistant to
the City Administrator; Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

C. Pledge ofAllegiance

Council Member Smeback led the Pledge ofAllegiance. Pastor Jason Williams led the opening prayer.

D. Agenda Changes None

Public Appearances/Introductions/ Presentations None

Getting To Know Our Businesses None

Communications

Mayor Pro Tem Finch opened the meeting.

Wayne Petterson approached the podium and addressed the Council. He asked for guidance from the
Council regarding his proposal for a Welcome to Selah sign, as the application process with the
Washington State Department ofTransportation (DOT), as it is ten to twelve months for approval once
the paperwork has been filed. He noted that the City would be responsible for an annual rental payment

Page 1 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



ofsix hundred dollars to the DOT, per their office in Olympia. He stated that he is committed to the
project for the next four months, and at that point will make a decision on whether to continue with the
proposal.

Council Member Tiemey wondered who's the City's representative to the Selah Downtown Association
to coordinate progress and what they are doing.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch responded that both herself and Mayor Gawlik were involved with it at one point.

Mr. Petterson commented that the City gave thirty thousand dollars to the Selah Downtown Association,
an entity completely separate from the City, and that there are no checks and balances or oversight on
expenditure of those funds.

Council Member Tiemey asked for confirmation that the City gave them funds that they don't have to
account for.

City Attomey Noe replied that there are two different entities involved, the original Economic
Development and Beautification Committee and the Selah Downtown Association. He noted that the
funds were provided for a specific purpose and that the entity utilizing them will have to account for
their expenditures.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch stated that no one from the Council serves on the board for the Selah Downtown
Association.

Council Member Tiemey felt that they should have a Council Member on the board, to report to the
Council and watch how they are spending their money.

Mr. Petterson commented that those who were currently serving on the City Council were ineligible to
be on the board of the Selah Downtown Association. He added that the DOT also charges for use of the
air space across the road.

Council Member Sample felt that Council should decide which version of the sign to back before
negotiating with the DOT.

Mr. Petterson responded that the other sign was a concept that Eagle Signs did in hopes ofgetting the
job down the line. He said that he presented his proposal to the Selah Downtown Association yesterday,
and that it seemed to go well.

Interim City Administrator Henne remarked that the City will contact the Selah Downtown Association
to have them make a presentation and see what they are willing to support, then the City will decide how
much and what support, at which point an application can be done.

Mr. Petterson commented that the Selah Downtown Association might be able to support the lion's share
ofwhat he's proposing, but the City would be responsible for the annual rental fee to the DOT.

Page 2 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Schmid asked where the Main Street Organization came in this, as he was under the
impression that this was why the Selah Downtown Association filed for 501c3 status.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch replied in the affirmative, adding that the monies would be earmarked for certain
areas of the city. She noted that they will address this further as a Council.

Seeing no one else rise to speak. Mayor Pro Tem Finch closed the meeting.

2. Written

a. Letter from Charter Communications regarding a Broadcast TV Surcharge
increase

b. November 2014 Monthly Report for Building Permits, Animal Control and Code
Enforcement

c. Recycling Data Report for the 3rd Quarter of2014

H. Proclamations/Announcements None

I. Consent Agenda

Council Member Overby moved to add M - 3, M - 4, and N - 4 to the Consent Agenda. Council
Member Williams requested that those items not be placed on the Consent Agenda.

Executive Assistant Lake read the Consent Agenda.

All items listed with an asterisk (*) were considered as part of the Consent Agenda.

* 1. Approval of Minutes: October 22,2014 Special Meeting; November 6,2014 Special
Meeting; and November 25,2014 Council Meeting

* 2. Approval ofClaims & Payroll:

Claim Checks Nos. 64923 - 64996 for a total of$591,073.17

* 3. Resolution M - 5: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Municipality
Tourism Promotion Management Contract with Yakima Valley Visitors and Convention
Bureau for the Year 2015

* 4. Resolution M - 6: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign an Advertisement
Contract with Yakima Valley Visitors and Convention Bureau for the Year 2015

* 5. Resolution M - 7: Resolution Regarding Changes to the By-Laws and Interlocal
Agreement to the Cities Insurance Association ofWashington (CIAW)

Page 3 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Sample seconded, to approve the Consent
Agenda as read. By voice vote, approval of the Consent Agenda was unanimous.

J. Public Hearings

1.

Interim City Administrator Henne addressed J - 1. He said that Fairpoint is requesting a franchise for
cable TV, which was reviewed by City Attorney Noe, and that part of the process for approval requires
that a public hearing be held to take testimony on the matter.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch opening the Hearing. Seeing no one rise to speak, she then closed the meeting.

K. New Business None

L. Old Business None

M. Resolutions

1. Resolution Revising Rates For 2015 Water Utility Services

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed M - 1. He said that, as part of the 2015 Budget development, a
four percent increase in water rates was recommended to balance the budget. He referred Council to the
information provided in the packet, citing examples of rate changes due to the increase.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Williams seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Revising Rates For 2015 Water Utility Services. Roll was called: Council Member
Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member
Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member
Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

2. Resolution Revising Rates For 2015 Sewer Utility Services

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed M - 2. He said that the used a similar approach for the Sewer
Fund, which resulted in the recommendation ofa three percent increase in rates.

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Smeback seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Revising Rates For 2015 Sewer Utility Services. Roll was called: Council Member
Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member
Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member
Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

3. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Contract with Ellensburg Telephone
Company d/b/a Fairpoint Communications for Centrex Telephone Services

Page 4 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed M - 3. He said that former City Administrator Kelly had
requested that he have the item placed on the agenda, which is simply a continuation of the City's prior
agreement with Fairpoint.

Interim City Administrator Henne noted that it's simply a housekeeping matter to get a current contract
in place.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski stated that the existing contract in the vault had terminated in 2006.

Council Member Schmid wondered what the term of the contract is.

Coimcil Member Tiemey remarked that, per item four, it's a two year agreement.

Council Member Schmid asked if this is for phone service.

Interim City Administrator Henne responded in the affirmative, adding that this is a different item than
the franchise agreement.

Council Member Schmid inquired if it was a positive or negative fiscal impact.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski replied that there is no change to the current expenses.

Alex Galbraith, Fairpoint Communications, approached the podium and addressed the Coimcil. He
commented that they weren't prepared to give information on this matter, and deferred to a coworker to
speak on the matter.

Jerry Jensen, Operations Manager for Fairpoint Communications, approached the podium and addressed
the Council. He stated that he believes all of the City is on the Centrex system, and that there is no rate
increase for services that he is aware of.

Council Member Williams asked if City Attorney Noe had reviewed the contract.

City Attorney Noe responded in the affirmative.

Council Member Williams moved, and Council Member Smeback seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Contract with Ellensburg Telephone
Company d/b/a Fairpoint Communications for Centrex Telephone Services. Roll was called:
Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tiemey - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes;
Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes;
Council Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

4. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Contract with Gift Bricks® and
Tiles for the Year 2015

Recreation Manger Brown addressed M - 4. He said that this is one of the ways they will utilize to raise
the matching funds needed for the grant to develop Volunteer Park.

Page 5 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Tiemey wondered if they would be able to return funds to those who purchase bricks if
thenecessary amount of match money isn't raised byMay 1®'.

Recreation Manager Brown responded that the items are ordered online, and that the funds will be held
in a Paypal account while the fimdraising is underway; if they don't raise enough then the money will be
returned via Paypal.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch requested that he explain the efforts to raise funds.

Recreation Manager Brown stated that the City will be contributingvolunteer hours up to the allowed
amount, and that any materials or equipment donated also counts towards the match amount. He added
that he will also be doing presentations to community groups and businesses throughout the valley.

Council Member Smeback asked if the grant amount would be reduced to match a lesser amount of
matching funds, or if it's an all or nothing deal.

Recreation Manager Brown replied that he doesn't believe the City would receive a portion if they are
imable to raise enough funds to complete the project.

Council Member Williams inquired if he'd started fundraising yet.

Recreation Manager Brown responded that he has fifteen thousand dollars to date, and people willing to
purchase bricks as soon as they get the website running.

Council Member Williams asked if he'd looked into local sources for the bricks.

Recreation Manager Brown replied the affirmative, adding that these are less expensive and guaranteed
for life.

Council Member Williams wondered if he'd talked with other communities that have used them.

Recreation Manager Brown responded that he reviewed the company's history ofcomplaints and
support on the Better Business Bureau website.

Assistant to the City Administrator Potter said that he has been working with Recreation Manager
Brown on this portion of the fundraising; the company gave them several contact websites that have
been used, but they didn't contact groups personally.

Council Member Sample asked about the weight of the bricks.

Recreation Manager Brown replied that it is a four to five pound brick.

Council Member Sample inquired about the free shipping ifone hundred bricks are purchased.

Recreation Manager Brown responded that anything over one hundred bricks is shipped for free.

Page 6 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Tiemey wondered if they had talked with other groups in the Yakima County that have
used bricks as a fundraising item.

Recreation Manager Brown replied that he has not.

Interim City Administrator Henne remarked that they sold bricks for the Selah Little league at
McGonagle Park; they can follow up on that to get an idea of how it works.

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Sample seconded, to Approve the
Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Contract with Gift Bricks® and Tiles for the
Year 2015. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes;
Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes;
Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was
unanimous.

* 5. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign a Municipality Tourism Promotion
Management Contract with Yakima Valley Visitors and Convention Bureau for the Year
2015

* 6. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor Pro Tem to Sign an Advertisement Contract with
Yakima Valley Visitors and Convention Bureau for the Year 2015

* 7. Resolution Regarding Changes to the By-Laws and Interlocal Agreement to the Cities
Insurance Association of Washington (CIAW)

* 8. Resolution to Approve a Supplemental Agreement with Huibregtse, Louman Associates,
Inc., No. 2 for the East Goodlander Road Improvements

N. Ordinances

1. Ordinance Providing for an 8.5% Increase in Utility Tax Rates on City Services for the
Support ofPolice and Fire Department Operations

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed N - 1. He said that, as part of the 2015 Budget, they need to
provide a funding source for the planned level of expenditures. He remarked that an increase ofeight
point five percent to the utility tax will provide approximately three hundred fifty-six thousand in
revenues, of which one hundred forty thousand will go the police department, and the remainder to the
fire department. He noted that Fire District #2 has agreed to contribute and additional one hundred sixty-
five thousand to the joint fire department budget.

Fire Chief Hanna remarked that Fire District #2 will be paying their portion of the budget as well as
contributing one hundred twenty-seven thousand six hundred for the equipment reserve fund.

Council Member Tiemey asked about the effect from delaying the vote.

Page 7 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski replied that it will affect the January billing, which is paid in February, and
that the net gain will be approximately eight percent less than currently built into the 2015 budget.

Council Member Tiemey asked if they needed to amend the budget reflect that difference.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski responded that it will not significantly hamper the City's ability to pay its
expenditures; the difference will be approximately seven thousand dollars per effected fund.

Deputy Police Chief Steen offered to answer any questions Council had on the matter.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch shared that one way Council had discussed to raise funds was to put the matter to
a vote; however, the earliest the matter could be voted on would be February ofnext year and the
expense would be roughly twenty thousand dollars for a special election. She noted that the City is
required to have a balanced budget by December 30"', and if they cannot come toa consensus today that
a special session will need to be held the following week.

Council Member Overby expressed his concem that the matter could have been addressed earlier via a
property tax increase, which he felt was a more appropriate way ofgenerating the necessary revenue. He
felt that increasing utility taxes again within a short period of time undermines the Council's ability to
make a decision when they could have entertained other avenues to explore and have a more sustainable
option.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski remarked that it would require an additional levy of sixty-three cents per
thousand, and that in talking with the County Assessor he discovered that this would hamper the City's
ability to do a one percent property tax increase due to the ceiling limit of three dollars and sixty cents
minus what the library district imposes. He noted that the earliest revenues could be collected on
property taxes would be 2016.

Council Member Overby said that he feels strongly that the credibility, faith, and trust ofthe citizens is
Council's coin of the realm, and that they also represent many people who are against this increase.

Council Member Sample commented that he feels the need to do this. He raised an objection to seeing
them short the Planning Department while raising taxes for the Fire and Police Departments.

Council Member Tiemey remarked that, while he hates taxes and increases ofany kind, he also spent
twenty-seven years and a law enforcement officer, and he knows full well the ramifications and dangers
of improperly contained evidence services. He expressed his support of the increase to benefit the two
departments, adding that only two people had contacted him about opposing the matter.

Council Member Smeback pointed out that past Councils and administrations worked hard to be fhigal,
almost to a fault, and that the City's rates are some of lowest in the County. He commented that both the
Fire and Police Departments have come to them with well thought out purchases and needs, and that he
feels this is the best method to get the money needed.

Page 8 Selah City Council Minutes I2/9/20I4



Council Member Williams felt that this was a tair way to spread the benefits and costs out to every
household within the City. She encouraged those who are on limited incomes to talk to the Utility
Billings Clerk about low income status.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski noted that the financial impact for those who qualify for the low income
seniors and disabled status will be ten percent less than 2014.

Council Member Schmid agreed with his fellow Council Members, reminding people that the increase
to pay offthe Marudo property debt will run out in eight years. He suggested that Council review the
next year's budget with an eye on eliminating some of the City's debt rather than simply continuing to
add to it.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch remarked that they made an extra loan payment to the Marudo loan in 2014.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski added that they transferred ninety-seven thousand dollars to reserve funds
in January as well as paying an additional fifty thousand in extra principal on the Marudo debt.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch commented that the property that was purchased to increase parking at the Civic
Center was done so using Transit funds.

Council Member Schmid asked about the purchase of Selah School District property.

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski responded that the school property was bought with funds from the sale of
the old Public Works property.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch stated that she was never in favor of sunsetting the tax increase to pay off the
Marudo debt, as she feels the City needs to take a at expenditures and come up vdth a ten to twenty year
plan. She noted that this is a separate matter wherein they haven't kept up with the cost of doing
business each year, and that this was the most proactive thing they could do to solve some ofthese
issues.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Tierney seconded, to Approve the
Ordinance Providing for an 8.5% Increase in Utility Tax Rates on City Services for the Support of
Police and Fire Department Operations. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - no; Council
Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - no; Council
Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes. Motion
passed with five yes votes and two no votes.

2. Ordinance Adopting the Budget for the City of Selah, Washington for the Year ending
December 31,2015

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed N - 2. He reviewed the 2015 budget summary included in the
packet, noting that the ending fund balance will be approximately six million, most of which is in
various reserve funds.

Page 9 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Williams seconded, to Approve tbe
Ordinance Adopting the Budget for the City of Selah, Washington for the Year ending December
31,2015. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council
Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Fincb - yes; Council
Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

3. Ordinance Granting a Franchise to Ellensburg Telephone Company d/b/a Fairpoint
Communications, its Successors or Assigns, to Own and Operate and Maintain a Cable
System in the City of Selah, Washington, Setting Forth Conditions Accompanying the
Grant of Franchise, and Providing for the Regulation and Use of Said System

Interim City Administrator Henne addressed N - 3. He said that this is a 15 year franchise proposal from
Fairpoint to provide cable televisions services to residents in the Selah area and recommended approval
of the franchise agreement,

Coimcil Member Tierney asked if it would be overhead or underground.

Interim City Administrator Henne replied that most of the lines would be overhead.

Alex Galbraith, Fairpoint Communications, approached the podium and addressed the Coimcil. He
stated that the service will be over the existing utilities and system they currently have in place.

Interim City Administrator Henne noted that utility services are underground in new subdivisions.

Council Member Schmid wondered if the City's other franchise agreements are for fifteen years.

City Attorney Noe replied that the length is fairly standard, and is the same duration as the one for
Charter.

Interim City Administrator Henne noted that the solid waste provider has a twenty-five year agreement.

Council Member Schmid stated that he would like to see all of them standardized.

Interim City Administrator Henne responded that it could be done, but they would still come up for
renewal at different times.

Council Member Williams asked who else the City has communications franchises with.

Interim City Administrator Henne replied that they have ones with Charter and DirecTV, a fiber one with
AT&T, and some for gas and telephone services.

Council Member Williams inquired if the five percent franchise is the same as Charter's.

City Attomey Noe responded in the affirmative, adding that the amount is pretty standard.

Council Member Schmid noted that the amount is the maximum set by the State.

Page 10 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Council Member Williams noted a typo on page four where the word 'sheets' was used instead of
'streets', and wondered if City Attorney Noe had drafted the franchise agreement.

City Attorney Noe replied that the agreement is a mirror image of the Charter one.

Council Member Williams wondered if this would affect internet service.

Jerry Jensen, Operations Manager for Fairpoint Communications, approached the podium and addressed
the Council. He said that this should have no effect on the current internet service, and that they have
invested a lot into the network between Ellensburg and Selah. He added that there will be a separate
bandwidth between the data and televisions to provide additional bandwidth to a house.

Council Member Williams remarked that the internet service is fast when a person first signs on, but it
tends to slow down the longer you're on.

Mr. Jensen responded that their service is dedicated from their equipment to a dsl modem in the house,
and that it's a ten gigabyte fiber network.

Council Member Williams noted that they are required to provide a public access channel, and asked if
they would be able to make Y-PAC be available to the citizens.

Mr. Jensen replied that it depends on Y-PAC.

Mike Brown, City ofYakima Community Relations, commented that he doesn't think it would be
possible at this point in time.

Council Member Smeback moved, and Council Member Schmid seconded, to Approve the
Ordinance Granting a Franchise to Ellensburg Telephone Company d/b/a Fairpoint
Communications, its Successors or Assigns, to Own and Operate and Maintain a Cable System in
the City of Selah, Washington, Setting Forth Conditions Accompanying the Grant of Franchise,
and Providing for the Regulation and Use of Said System. Roll was called: Council Member
Overby-yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback-yes; Council Member
Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member
Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

4. Ordinance Amending the 2014 Budget for Miscellaneous Adjustments

Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski addressed N - 4. He said that these are the final modifications of the 2014

financial plan for various appropriations and expenditures within funds, and briefly reviewed the
information provided in the packet.

Council Member Tiemey moved, and Council Member Schmid seconded, to Approve the
Ordinance Amending the 2014 Budget for Miscellaneous Adjustments. Roll was called: Council
Member Overby - yes; Council Member Tierney - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council

Page 11 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Member Schmid - yes; Council Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council
Member Williams - yes. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

O. Communications

1. Oral

Mayor Pro Tem Finch opened the meeting.

Wayne Worby approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that he'd presented a proposal
at the last Council Meeting to change some language in the Municipal Code and wondered if he could
help in any way to facilitate a decision being made on the matter.

City Attorney Noe responded that the matter was sent back to the Planning Commission for further
consideration, and suggested that he talk to the Planning Commission as they will make a
recommendation to Council on the matter.

Community Planner Davison commented that the Planning Commission had a hearing on the matter and
recommended to Council that they implement zoning changes to allow a case by case basis on new
subdivisions. He noted that they will adopt their minutes at the next meeting and send the matter to
Council after the first of the year.

Mr. Worby remarked that what he presented showed the conflict in the City's Code, which he suggested
they remove entirely to eliminate the conflict, and asked where the matter would go so that he can help
get it resolved.

City Attorney Noe observed that there was an issue on a particular project that the Hearing Examiner
couldn't approve because of a conflict in the Code, and that Council didn't take action on the matter,
opting instead to refer it back to the Planning Commission.

Coimcil Member Smeback noted that the minutes they were provided with were a draft copy.

Community Planner Davison stated that the matter was remanded back to the Planning Commission on
the same day that Council remanded the recommendation on the proposed East Goodlander rezone.

Council Member Tiemey said that Mr. Worby is talking about the package he brought to Council with
his suggestions on improving the Code, which he was directed to take to the Planning Commission.

Community Planner Davison stated that the information hasn't been provided to him.

City Attorney Noe remarked that he met with Mr. Worby last week on the matter, and that he explained
that the Planning Commission would need to review the matter and make a recommendation to Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch asked if the item will at the next Coimcil Meeting.

Community Planner Davison responded in the affirmative.

Page 12 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Wayne Patterson approached the podium and addressed the Council. He said that the City ofTieton has
a mosaic on the side of their Post Office, and will have pieces ofmosaic all over the City. He
recommended that people go see it, as it is quite amazing.

Seeing no one rise to speak. Mayor Pro Tem Finch closed the meeting.

P. Reports/Announcements

1. Mayor Pro Tem

Mayor Pro Tem Finch gave a brief update on the process of hiring a new City Administrator, noting that
applications must be in on the 12"^, and that the Mayor intends to conduct initial interviews in January.
She thanked the Department Heads and Clerk/Treasurer Novobielski for their hard work on the 2015
budget.

2. Council Members

Council Member Overby had no report.

Coimcil Member Sample had no report.

Council Member Tiemey had no report.

Council Member Smeback had no report.

Council Member Williams stated that the January YVCOG meeting would be held at the Selah Civic
Center.

Council Member Schmid had no report.

3. Departmental

Interim City Administrator Henne stated that he agrees with several Council Members on the matter ofa
full-time planner. He stated that he hopes to bring a proposed contract for Durant planning services to
them in January.

City Attomey Noe had no report.

Community Planner Davison said that the Planning Commission will be sending a proposed text
amendment to the zoning Ordinance to Council at the first meeting ofJanuary. He remarked that the
Hearing Examiner has heard the Somerset II proposed rezone and Planned Development, as well as
Valhalla, and that the matter will be brought to Council in January. He wished everyone a merry
Christmas.

Page 13 Selah City Council Minutes I2/9/20I4



Fire Chief Hanna said that Deputy Fire Chief Martin is retiring, and that his last day is Dec He
remarked that the job posting was done yesterday; it will be advertised in the YakimaHerald-Republic,
sent to local fire departments, and placed in the Daily Dispatch. He thanked Council for approving the
increase in the budget, saying that he understands the struggle they make with that, and that he
appreciates the thought that went into it. He added that he will do everything within his power to be
frugal and spend the money wisely. He wished everyone a merry Christmas.

Deputy Police Chief Steen had no report. He expressed his sincere thanks to the Council, adding that
their diligence is important to not only the departments but the community they represent.

Police Chief Hayes wished everyone a merry Christmas.

Council took a ten minute recess.

4. Boards None

Q. Executive Session

1. 15 Minute Session - Real Estate RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)

Council went into Executive Session at 6:07pm. At 6:22pm, Council went back on the record.
Mayor Pro Tem Finch stated that no action was taken during the Executive Session.

Council Member Williams wanted to know how she can encourage a Study Session to discuss the
Planning Department.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch asked about the procedure.

City Attorney Noe replied that they just ask for a Study Session if it's a consensus of the Council.

Council Member Smeback stated that, when they approved the 2015 budget, they agreed to try a part-
time planner for a while. He suggested having a Study Session after the first quarter ofnext year.

Council Member Williams felt that some things have come up that changes the scenario a bit, as the
contract isn't what they were expecting it to be.

Interim City Administrator Henne remarked that the contract is just for general planning services, adding
that Community Planner Davison also checks permits for set-backs, answers questions when citizens
stop in, and numerous little issues like that. He noted that other staff will absorb some of the duties. He
said that he wasn't involved in any of the discussion about reducing the planner position from full-time
to part-time, adding that it took years of talking to Council to hire a full-time planner. He added that the
contract planner will be gone the first five weeks of the year, and that he asked Community Planner
Davison to stay for an additional month.

Council Member Williams asked if this will affect his retirement.

Page 14 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Interim City Administrator Henne responded in the negative, saying that he's PERS 1. He went on to say
that he can only work seventy-nine hours next month, and that the Public Works department staff will
need to be brought up to speed to assist the public.

Council Member Schmid commented that there were a couple people who tried to put those issues on
the table.

Council Member Smeback wondered if Mr. Durant would have set hours.

Interim City Administrator Henne replied in the affirmative, saying that they vrill need to figure out how
to spread his time out in basic office hours.

Council Member Williams wondered who people would talk to regarding expansion, building new
structures, and selling commercial property.

Interim City Administrator Henne responded that they would talk to him.

Mayor Pro Tem Finch spoke out in favor of taking the matter month by month to see how it goes. She
suggested getting regular feedback from Interim City Administrator Henne and holding a Study Session
during the first quarter of next year to discuss how to move forward.

Council Member Schmid asked about the City paying for matters to go to the Hearing Examiner.

Interim City Administrator Henne commented that someone had to provide staff reports to the Hearing
Examiner; he's a judge of the facts. He feels that utilizing the Hearing Examiner is a better way to do
this as the members of the Planning Commission vary with experience and expertise. He noted that, if
Council decides to hire another full-time planner, it will take another two months to get someone on
board.

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Williams seconded, to hold a Study Session
to discuss the matter in January 2015. Roll was called: Council Member Overby - yes; Council
Member Tiemey - yes; Council Member Smeback - yes; Council Member Schmid - yes; Council
Member Finch - yes; Council Member Sample - yes; Council Member Williams - yes. By voice
vote, approval was unanimous.

R. Adjournment

Council Member Tierney moved, and Council Member Williams seconded, that the meeting be
adjourned. By voice vote, approval was unanimous.

The meeting adjourned at 6:44pm.

EXCUSED

John Gawlik, Mayor

Page 15 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



Paul Overby, Council Member

Dave Smeback, Council Member

Brooke Finch, Mayor Pro Tem

Jane Williams, Council Member

ATTEST;

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

John Tiemey, Council Member

Allen Schmid, Council Member

Roy Sample, Council Member

Page 16 Selah City Council Minutes 12/9/2014



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 1-2

Title: Claims & Payroll

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: See Check Registers.

Funding Source: Various. See Check Registers.

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of Claims & Payroll as listed on Check Registers.

Background / Findings & Facts:

See check Registers.

Recommended Motion:

Motion to Approve the Consent Agenda as read. (This item is part of the
Consent Agenda)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 K-1

Title: Selection of a Mayor Pro Tempore for Calendar Year 2015

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Comniission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

To select a 2015 Mayor Pro Tempore in accordance with Selah Municipal Code

Chapter 1.06 § 100

Background / Findings & Facts:

Council is required to select a Mayor Pro Tempore each calendar year during

the month of January per Selah Municipal Code

Recommended Motion:

Selection of a Mayor Pro Tempore for Calendar Year 2015



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 K-2

Title: Board & Committee Assignments for 2015

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Mayor GawHk

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Select Council Members for various boards and committees

Background / Findings & Facts:

Each year the Council Members are assigned to represent the City on various

boards and committees.

Recommended Motion:

Select Council Members for all boards and committees and approve the final
list for 2015



City of Selah

Boards and Committees 2015 Assignments

1. Finance Committee

2. Parks & Recreation Board

•

3. Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) (same committee as TEA)

•

4. Selah Tourism Promotion Area (TEA) (Same committee as LTAC)

•

5. Yakima Valley Conference ofGovernments (YVCOG)

m

m

6. Yakima Valley Visitors & Convention Bureau (YVYCB)

•

7. Selah Parks & Recreation Service Area Board (SPRSA)

•

•

8. Selah C.A.N.

•

9. Yakima Transit

•

10. Fire Commissioners Board and Volunteer Firefighters Board

• Mayor Gawlik

•

11. Selah Chamber of Commerce

•

2015 assignments



12. Selah School District

13. Gang Commission

a

14. Naches-Selah Irrigation District Voting Member

• Mayor Gawlik

15. Facilities Committee

• John Tiemey

• Roy Sample

• Dave Smeback

Other entities:

1. Selah Parks Foundation

2. Selah Dovmtown Association

3. Civil Service Commission

4. Planning Commission

5. Hearing Examiner

6. Yakima Regional Clean Air Agency

• Mayor Gawlik

7.

2015 assignments



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 J-3

Title: Proposed Selah Municipal Code Amendments: Chapter 10.28, Table A-5,

Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes, and Chapter 10.12.040

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Dennis Davison, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Adoption: Complete connectivity between Chapter 10.12.040 and Chapter
10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes referencing the
provisions of Chapter 10.12.040

Background / Findings & Facts:

The initial adoption of Title 10, Chapter 10.28, in 2004, did not provide any
reference in Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or in Chapter 10.28.040
Regulatory Notes to the provisions of Chapter 10.12.040, which would permit
duplexes on specifically designated lots zoned One Family Residential (R-1)
within new subdivisions.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Mr. Torkelson submitted a proposed plat entitled 'Eagle Ridge Phases 2, 3 and

4', desiring to utilize the provision of Chapter 10.12.040 to create 3 lots

specifically designated for duplex structures.

At the hearing the Examiner found there was no connectivity between Chapter

10.12.040 and Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory
Notes referencing the provisions of Chapter 10.12.040. Thus he denied the

inclusion of specifically designated duplex lots within the proposed
subdivision.

The original purpose of Chapter 10.12.040 was to create a diversity of housing
structures and promote affordable housing within the One Family Residential

(R-1) zone.

The Commission finds that with continued population growth there is a need to
provide for greater zoning flexibility when developing property. Said text
amendments are in furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare

of the people within the City of Selah.

Recommended Motion:

I move we adopt the proposed amendments to the Selah Municipal Code (SMC
Chapter 10.12.040, Chapter 10.28.040 (I) Regulatory Notes and Chapter 10.28,
Table 5-A) and adopt the Commission's Findings as our own



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date;

9/30/2014

10/14/2014

11/4/2014

Action Taken:

Planning Commission Conducted Public Hearing on

Proposed Text Amendments and Adopted

Recommendation of Approval

City Council considers proposed Text Amendments as a

Council agenda item and REJECTS Planning Commission

Recommendation of Approval.

Planning Commission Conducts Public Hearing on
Proposed Text Amendments to Title 10, Chapter 10.28,

Table 5-A, Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes, and

Chapter 10.12.040 One Family Residential Zoning

District (R-1) and Adopts Recommendation of Approval

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text-

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT
(prepared October 31,2014)

(public hearing November 4,2014)

FILE NO.: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 2014-01

PROPOSAL: Amend Selah Municipal Code, Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter
10.28.040 Regulatory Notes

PROPONENT: City of Selah Planning Department

HISTORY: Selah Municipal Code, Title 10 28, initially created in 2004.

SURROUNDING LANDUSE:Not applicable as the proposedzoningordinance text amendments
would apply throughout the municipality.

VICINITY ZONING: Not applicable as the proposedzoningordinancetext amendments would
apply throughout the municipality.

2005 CITY OF SELAH URBAN GROWTH AREA COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN:

Applicable Goals and Policies:

Policy LUGM 3.2:.Directdevelopment to areas where infrastructure (water, sewerand
street) is either present, can be easily extended, or is plaimedto be extended.

APPLICABLITY: The proposed zoningordinance text amendments wouldfurther the Housing
Goalswithinthe municipality andprovidefor a mixture ofhousing types as contemplated in SMC.
Title 10.12.040.

STAFFRECOMMENDATION: Approval ofthe proposed zoningordinance text amendments to
SelahMunicipal CodeTitle 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040
Regulatory Notes to implement SMC, Title 10.12.040. Thisrecommendation is supported
by a recommendationfrom the Hearing Examiner.

SELAH MUNICIPAL CODE TEXT AMENDMENT 2014-01
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.28, Table A-5, AND 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes

©



Davison, Dennis

From: Patrick Spurgin <pds@spurginlawoffice.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 16, 2014 4:17 PM
To: Davison, Dennis; Kelly, David; 'Bob Noe (E-mail)'
Subject: RE; Permitted Duplexes in the R-1 zoning district

Dennis, it seems like if you use a new review classification (lA), you'll need to define it, and you'd be adding a kind of
new convention to the table. In other cases, the code uses regulatory notes to indicate additional regulatory
requirements for a particular land use as set out in SMC 10.28.040 by a parenthetical reference next to the listed use. It
makes sense to me that you could use the same convention for duplexes in the R-1 by showing them in the Table as a
Class 1 use, but adding a regulatory note 10.28.040(j)that says something like "Duplexesare only permitted Inthe R-1
zoning district on lots that have been designated as two family residential lots per SMC10.12,040." The regulatory note
citation would be put in parenthesis next to the duplex entry on the table to give notice to the reader of a need to
inquire further. This notice connection is already called out In10.28.02Q(a). That's my two cents' worth.

Pat

From: Davison, Dennis rmailto:ddavison(5)ci.selah.wa.us1
Sent: Wednesday, September 10, 2014 3:36 PM
To: Kelly, David; Bob Noe (E-mail); Patrick Spurgin
Subject: Permitted Duplexes In the R-1 zoning district

Please review and suggest any changes you wish to incorporate

Existingcode (no color highlights)

Proposed text (changes highlighted in red)

Existing R-1 Zone (existing authorization highlighted in blue)

Let me know you thoughts (by Wednesday next week) prior to presentation to Planning Commission

?



CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

FINDINGS AND DECISION

THIS MATTER having come on for public hearing before the City of Selah Planning
Commission on November 4,2014, following a remand from the Selah City Council for further
consideration. The Commission is reconsidering zoning ordinance text amendments #2014-01 to
Selah Municipal Code Title 10, (Zoning Ordinance),Chapter 10.28,Table A-5 and Chapter
10.28.040 Regulatoiy Note (1).

The members ofthe Commission present were MILLER. PENDLETON. OUINNELL.
TORKELSON and SMITH.

Legal notification pursuant to Selah Municipal Code was given on the 26th day ofOctober 2014.
All persons present were given the opportunityto speak for or against the proposed text
amendments.

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies

1. The proposed zoning ordinance text amendments will or will not, as indicated
below, further Ae following goals and their underlyingpolicies ofthe 2005 City of Selah
Urban Growth Area Comprehensive Plan.

WILL WILL NOT

GOAL FURTHER FURTHER N/A

a. Promote orderly growth XX

b. Avoid incompatible land uses XX

c. Encourage the provision of
housing to meet the needs of
all segments of the community XX

d. Preserve natural resources XX

e. Protect against flooding
and drainage problems XX

I ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 2014-01
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.12.040; CHAPTER 10.28, PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND
CONDITIONAL USES, TABLE A-5, AND CHAPTER 10.28.040 REGULATORY NOTES.
PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS OF FACT NOVEMBER 4,2014

1 of 3



f. Maintain and improve air
and water quality XX

g. Maintain an efficient
transportation system XX

h. Provide efficient and

effective public services
at the lowest possible
cost XX

CHANGED CIRCUMSTANCES

The Planning Commission finds THE FOLLOWING CHANGES in
circumstances which justifies the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment:

The initial adoption of Selah Municipal Code Title 10, Chapter 10.28 did not
provide any reference in Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or Chapter 10.28.040
Regulatory Notes to the provision ofChapter 10.12.040, which would permit
duplexes on specifically designated lots within new subdivisions zoned One
Family Residential (R-1) The original purpose ofChapter 10.12.040 was to create
a diversity ofhousing structures and promote affordable housing within the One
Family Residential (R-1) zone. The Commission finds that with continued
population growth there is a need to provide for greater zoning flexibility when
developing property. Said text amendments are in furtherance of the public health,
safety and general welfare of the people within the City of Selah.

NEED FOR THE PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT

The Planning Commission FINDS that within the City ofSelah and within Selah
Municipal Code Title 10 there is a demonstrated and/or recognized need to
expand the opportunity and flexibility of Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter
10.28.040 Regulatory Notes.

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 2014-01

TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.12.040; CHAPTER 10.28, PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND
I CONDITIONAL USES, TABLE A-5, AND CHAPTER 10.28.040 REGULATORY NOTES.

PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS OF FACT NOVEMBER 4,2014

2 of 3



PUBLIC OPINION

4, The public testimony that was offered was IN OPPOSITION OF the proposed
text amendments.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

5. The Planning Commission finds that environmental review has been completed
on the proposal and further finds that such environmental review was
ADEQUATE.

CONTROLLING FACTORS

The Planning Commission determines that ALL OF THE ABOVE findings to be
controlling factors in its deliberations on the proposed zoning ordinance text
amendments.

DECISION

The Plaiming Conunission, based upon the aforementioned findings and controlling
factors, finds that the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments IS in furtherance of
the public health, safetyand general welfare of the people; therefore, the proposed zoning
ordinance text amendments shouldbe APPROVED and additional amendatory language
is to be added to Chapter 10.12.040:

Careful consideration ofadjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be
made ensuring harmonious compatibility.

Motion to APPROVE by: SMITH Seconded by: TORKELSON

Vote: 5 to 0

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 2014-01
TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.12.040; CHAPTER 10.28, PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND
CONDITIONAL USES, TABLE A-5, AND CHAPTER 10.28.040 REGULATORY NOTES.
PLANNING COMMISSION FINDINGS OF FACT NOVEMBER 4,2014

3 of 3



CHAPTER 10.28

PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES

Sections:

10.28.010 Designations.
10.28.020 Land use table.

10.28.030 Similar uses.

10.28.040 Regulatory notes.

10.28.010 Desigiations.

(1) Class 1 uses listed in Title 10.28,Table A are permitted subject to review by the
administrative official for compliance with Chapter 10.08 and die applicable standards of
this title.

(2) The Class 2 and Class 3 uses listed in Chapter 10.28, Table A, and all mattersdirectly
related thereto possess characteristics that warrant review consistent with S.M.C. Tide 21,
and Chapter 10.08, to ensure:

(a) Consistency with the city'scomprehensive plangoals,objectives, policies and
development criteria;

(b) The intent, character and development standards appropriate to the zoning
district within which it is to be located;

(c) Compatibility with other uses; and,

(d) Other relevant requirements ofstate or city law.

(3) If a proposed use is to be situated on property within the jurisdictional boundariesof
the City's Shorelines Management MasterProgram, it shallbe subject to the permits and
procedural requirementsthereof in addition to all applicable standardsofthis title. Ifa
conflict existsbetween the standards ofthe City's Shoreline Management MasterProgram
and this title, the more restrictive provisionsshall apply.

10.28.020 Land use table. Chapter10.28, TableA, lists thoseuses whichmay be
permittedthroughClass 1,2 or 3 reviewin the variouszoningdistrictsdefined in this
title. Uses not listedin Chapter 10.28, TableA, are not permitted uses. Proposed uses not
listed in Chapter 10.28, Table A, may be considered as a similar use in accordance with
Section 10.28.030Similar Uses. In addition to Chapter 10.28,Table A, reference to the
individual zoning districts and, where indicated, the regulatorynotes contained in Section
10.28.040and definitions in Title 10,Appendix A, is necessaryin order to determine if
any specific requirements apply to the listed use.

©



10.28.030 Similar Uses.

(1) When a proposed use is found that is not classified within any of the categories of
Chapter 10.28, Table A, the administrative official may determine whether or not the
unclassified use is similar to a use currently listed as a Class 1, 2 or 3 use for the zoning
district.

(2) Similar use requests shall be initiated by written application and accompanying fee? or
directly by the administrative official. Each request shall set forth the specific basis for
the request and its compliance with subsection (4) below. The administrative official may
submit the similar use request to the planning commission, hearing examiner or any
interested, affected or concerned agency(s) or person(s) for review and comment before
making a determination. In addition, the administrative official may schedule the
planning commission or hearing examiner to conduct a public hearing to consider the
similar use request.

(3) The administrative official shall not approve a similar use determination request
unless evidence is presented to demonstrate that the proposed use will comply with the
purpose, intent, goals, objectives and policies of the comprehensive plan and the zoning
district in which it is proposed to be located. The administrative official shall prepare
written findings stating the rational upon which the determination was based.

(4) If the administrative official finds that the proposed use is similar, he shall also
establish whether the proposed use shall be processed as a Class 2 or a Class 3 use
according to Chapter 10.28, Table A. If a proposed use is not determined to be a similar
use it shall not be considered an allowable use. Similar use determinations may be
appealed to the legislative authority as provided in Chapter 10.48 and S.M.C. Title 21.

10.28.040 Regulatory notes. The following regulatory notes correspond to the
uses listed in Chapter 10.28, Table A:

(a) through (k) inclusive were not printed due to non-relevance.

(1) Duplexes are only permitted in the One Family Zoning District (R-1) on lots
that have been designated as Two Family Residential lots per S.M.C. Chapter 10.12.040.

Proposed te.\t amendment in RED



CHAPTER 10.28
PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES

TABLE A-5

See Chapter 10.06.020 for an explanation of Use Categories

CITY OF SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 28, TABLE A-5

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT LDSF R-l R-2 R-3 B-l B-2 M-1

MINING / REFINING / OFF-SITE

HAZARDOUS WASTE

TREATMENT

Asphalt, roofing material manufacture, roel: crushing 3

Mining*, including sand andgravel pits 3

OfTsile hazardous wastetreatment and storage faciiiiies* 3 3

RESIDENTIAL

Accessorystructure, use or building* 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Detachedsingle family dwelling* 1 1 1

Manufactured home*/Mobile home* (See 10.08.140) 1

Two family dwelling (duplex) * (Sec I0.28.U4U[I|) 1(1) 1 1

Multiple family dwelling*: 0-S DUA

<6.12DUA

>12 DUA

2

2

1

I

I

Manufactured home parks* (See I0.28.040[e]) 3

Ketlrcmeniapartments 2 1

Home occupations* (See I0.28.040[o))

Minor Home Occupations* (Sec 10.28.040[o]) 1 1 I 1 1 1

Major Home Occupations* (.See 10.28.040[o]) 2 2 2 2 2 1

Proposed text amendmenl in RED

SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE—PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT—APRIL 2003

CH-28-TABLE-A



Sections:

CHAPTER 10.12

ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1) ZONING DISTRICT

10.12.010 Purpose.
10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.
10.12.030 Lot size.

10.12.040 Designated two family residential lots.

10.12.010 Purpose. The One-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District is established to
provide for single family residential development where urban governmental services are
currently available or will be extended by the proponent to facilitate development at no public
cost.

Specifically, the intent of this district is to:

(1) Provide for an orderly, phased transition from vacant or partially developed land
to single family residential development;

(2) Facilitate coordinated and collaborative public infrastructure investment;

(3) Require individual lot connections to municipal water and sewer systems;

(4) Require developmentsto meet the City's minimum urban development standards;

(5) Particular emphasis shall be given to ensuring that R-1 uses and land divisions
will facilitate future urban development and extension ofutilities.

10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted. Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.

Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrativeand Class 3 ConditionalUses as listed in Chapter
10.28, Table A.



10.12.030 Lot size.

(1) The minimum lot size requirements for any newly created lot (including lot line adjustments)
in this district are progressive based on slope and utility provisions:

Slope Water and Sewage System Minimum lot size

<10% Municipal water and
sewage system 8,000 sq.ft.

> 10% Municipal water and
<15% sewage system 10,000 sq.ft.

> 15% Municipal water and
<20% sewage system 1/2 acre

> 20% Municipal water and
< 25% sewage system 1 acre

> 25% 5 acres

(2) Subdivision designs shall ensure that adequate setbacks, buffering of adjoining uses and
sensitivity to physical features are achieved. Lot sizes shall be increased to accommodate specific
uses, lot coverage, setbacks, access, landscaping and other requirements as provided in this title.

10.12.040 Designated two famiiv residential lots. Within a proposed land division of
ten (10) or more lots ton (i 0) percent of the lots may be designated for a future two family
dwelling. The proposed lol(s) shall be considered by the reviewing body and. once the lot
location(s) are approved, the lot(s) shall be clearly idcntilied on the recorded subdivision
providing public disclosure of said approval.

Careful consideration of adjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring
harmonious compatibility.

The minimum lot size requirement of any lot(s) designated for a future two family
dwelling shall be a minimum of 9.000 sq. ft. or such minimum lot size based on slope specified
in Section 10.12.030.

Existing text in the One-r'amily Residential (R-1) zone
Proposed amendment of existing text in the One-Family Residential (R-1) zone

O



City ofSelah
Planning Commission Minutes

of

November 4, 2014

Selah Council Chambers

115 W. Naches Ave.

Selah, Washington 98942

A. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Quinnell at 5:29 p.m.

B. Roll Call:

Members Present: Commissioners: Miller, Torkelson, Smith, Quinnell, and Pendleton.
Members Absent:

Staff Present: Dennis Davison, Community Planner; Caprise Groo, Secretary
Guests:

Mr. Davison addressed the audience about the issues before the Planning Commission. The first item: Correct 2 lines of text on page
8 of theJune 2014 minutes. Thesecond item: Selah Municipal Code, Title 10 Chapter 10.28 text amendment. Heexplained
that no other issues where scheduled to be discussed by the Planning Commission but took questions and held a short discussion
concerning zoning, SEPA, and availability ofpublic information.

Chairman Quinnell addressed the agenda:

C. Agenda Change None

D. Communications

1. Oral -

Chairman Quinnell: "This is a public meeting. If you wish to address the Commission concerning any matter that is not on the agenda,
you may do so now. Please Come forward to the podium, stating your name and address for the record. The Chairman reserves the
right to place a time limit on each person asking to be heard."

Mr. Worby, 200 Weems Way, addressed concerns about municipal code complexities, language and zoning.

Mr. Davison explained the state Growth Management Act and how the Council revisited the Comprehensive Plan in 2005. At that
time the zoning code was changed to permit duplexes in the R-lzone, however, it did not carry over to the table. Mr. Davison stated
that the Hearing Examiner had suggested that the table and the text should match.

Mr. Davison and Mr. Worby continued to discuss the Growth Management Act, duplexes and zoning.

Mr. Worby suggested an impact fee on all new construction would help support the local schools.

Mr. Davison explained that an impact fee was once suggested but that it had not been implemented for certain reasons.

Mr. Worby, Mr. Davison and the Commissioners discussed the practicality ofan impact fee and how it could be used.

Chairman Quinnell asked ifanyone else would like to speak.

Dr. Richard Weller, 50 Herlou Place, addressed concerns about the SEPA process and what warrants additional studies.

Mr. Davison discussed the SEPA process and what affected agencies the report is sent to. He stated that any comments that come in
were addressed by the City Administrator. After a comment period, the administrator can revise the determination if need be. Mr.
Davison stated that SEPA is an administrative function.

Chairman Quinnell asked if anyone else would like to speak.

PLANNING COMMISSION 10
MINUTES 11/04/14



Mr. Stan Taylor, 50Weems Way, expressed concerns about a 20foot wide road inthe Planned Development presented byMr.
Sample that would not be maintainedby the city.

ChairmanQuinnell responded that with all due respect that was not on the Agenda.

CommissionerTorkelson responded that Mr. Davison had covered that issue.

Chairman Quinnell closed the session oforal communication.

2 Written - None

E. Annroval of Minutes

1. October 27, 2014 minutes:

ChairmanQuinnell requested an approval, disapproval or correctionsof the October 27,2014 minutes.

Commissioner Torkelson motioned to approve the minutes.

Commissioner Smith seconded the motion.

ChairmanQuinnellcalled for a voice vote and the minutes were passed with a vote of 5-0.

F. Public Hearing

1. Old Business - None

2. New Business - None

0: General Business

1. Old Business - None

2. New Business-

1. Correct 2 lines of text on page 8 ofthe June 2014 Minutes.

Chairman Quinnell requested a motion to approve or disapprove the correction.

Commissioner Torkelson motioned to approve the correction to the June 2014 Minutes.

Commissioner Smith seconded the motion.

Chairman Quinnell called for a voice vote and the correction was passed with a vote of5-0.

2. Selah Mimicipal Code, Title 10 Chapter 10.28

Mr. Davison presented the staff report and the attachments:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT
(Prepared October 31,2014)

(Public hearing November 4,2014)

FILE NO.: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 2014-01

PROPOSAL: Amend Selah Municipal Code, Title 10, Chapter 10.28,Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040Regulatory Notes

PROPONENT: City of Selah Planning Department j "

PLANNING COMMISSION < I
MINUTES 11/04/14 \



HISTORY: SelahMunicipal Code,Title 1028, initiallycreatedin 2004.

SURROUNDING LAND USE: Notapplicable astheproposed zoning ordinance text amendments would apply throughout the
municipality.

VICINITY ZONING: Notapplicable as theproposed zoning ordinance textamendments wouldapply throughout themunicipality.

2005 CITY OF SELAH URBAN GROWTH AREA COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN:

Applicable Goals and Policies:

Policy LUGM 3.2:.Direct development to areaswhere infrastnicture (water, sewer andstreet) iseitherpresent, canbe easily
extended, or is plannedto be extended.

APPLICABLITY: Theproposed zoning ordinance textamendments would further the Housing Goalswitliin the municipality andprovide
for a mixture of housing types as contemplated in SMC. Title 10.12.040.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments to Selah Municipal Code Title 10,Chapter
10.28,Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes to inclement SMC, Title 10.12.040. This recommendation is
supportedby a recommendation by the Hearing Examiner.

CHAPTER 10.28

PERMITTED. ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES
TABLE A-5

See Chapter 10.06.020 for an explanation of Use Categories

CITY OF SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 28, TABLE A-5

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT

MINING / REFINING / OFF-SITE

HAZARDOUS WASTE

TREATMENT

Asphall, roofing malerial manufacture, rock crushing

Mining*, including sand and gravel pits

Offsite hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities*

RESIDENTIAL

Accessory structure, use or building*

Detached single family dwelling*

Manufactured honie*/Mobile home* (See 10.08.140)

Two family dwelling (duplex) * (See 10.28.040(1])

Multiple family dwelling*: 0-5 QUA

<6-12 DUA

>12DUA

1'l.ANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14

LDSF R-1 R-2 R-3 B-1 B-2

3

1 I 1 1 1 I

1 1 1

1

1(1) 1 I

2

2

1

1

1



Manufactured home parks* (See I0.28.040[e]) 3

Retirement apartments
2 1

Home occupations* (See I0.28.040(o])

Minor Home Occupations* (See I0.28.040[o]) 1 1 1 1 1 1

Major Home Occupations* (See I0.28.040[o]) 2 2 2 2 2 1

CHAPTER 10.12

ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL fR-n ZONING DISTRICT

Sections:

10.12.010 Purpose.
10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.

10.12.030 Lot size.

10.12.040 Designated two family residential lots.

10.12.010 Purpose. The One-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District is established to
provide for single family residential development where urban governmental services are
currently available or will be extended by the proponent to facilitate development at no public
cost.

Specifically, the intent of this district is to:

(1) Provide for an orderly, phased transition from vacant or partially developed land
to single family residential development;

(2) Facilitate coordinated and collaborative public infrastructure investment;

(3) Require individual lot connections to municipal water and sewer systems;

(4) Require developments to meet the City's minimum urban development standards;

(5) Particular emphasis shall be given to ensuring that R-1 uses and land divisions
will facilitate future urban development and extension of utilities.

10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted. Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.

Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses as listed in Chapter
10.28, Table A.

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES II/04/I4 lb



10.12.030 Lot size.

(1) The minimum lot size requirements for any newly created lot (including lot line adjustments)
in this district are progressive based on slope and utility provisions:

Slope Water and Sewage Svstem Minimum lot size

< 10% Municipal water and
sewage system 8,000 sq.ft.

> 10% Mrmicipal water and
<15% sewage system 10,000 sq.ft.

>15% Municipal water and
< 20% sewage system 1/2 acre

> 20% Municipal water and
< 25% sewage system 1 acre

> 25% 5 acres

(2) Subdivision designs shall ensure that adequate setbacks, buffering ofadjoining uses and
sensitivity to physical features are achieved. Lot sizes shall be increased to accommodate
specific uses, lot coverage, setbacks, access, landscaping and other requirements as provided in
this title.

10.12.040 Designated t^vo family residential lots. Within a proposed land division of
ten (10) or more lots ten (10) percent of the lots may be designated for a future two family
dwelling. The proposed lot(s) shall be considered by the reviewing body and, once the lot
location(s) are approved, the lot(s) shall be clearly identified on the recorded subdivision
providing public disclosure of said approval.

Careful consideration of adjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring
harmonious compatibility.

The minimum lot size requirement of any lot(s) designated for a future two family
dwelling shall be a minimum of 9,000 sq. ft. or such minimum lot size based on slope specified
in Section 10.12.030.

Existing text in theOne-Family Residential (R-1) zone
Proposed amendment of existing text in the One-Family Residential (R-1) zone

Chainnan Quinnell asked if the Council was catching the table up with the verbiage that was drafted in 2004.

Mr. Davison stated that this created continuity between the table, the text and the regulatory notes.

PLANNING COMMISSION 5
MINUTES II/04/I4



Commissioner Torkelson: "This was reviewed by the hearing examiner?"

Mr. Davison stated that this was reviewed by the Hearing Examiner and an application was rejected because there
was no continuitybetween the text and the table All this does is correct that and allow the Hearing Examinerto
consider it.

CommissionerMiller asked "There is no requirementthat a lot designatedfor a duplex has to be used for duplex but
it gives them the option?"

Mr. Davisonstated yes it gives them the option but it does not mean the Hearing Examiner will approve it.

Commissioner Torkelson asked "Did Mr. Noe look this over?"

Mr. Davison stated that Mr. Noe had looked it over.

Commissioner Smith asked why they proposed putting an R-2 in an R-1 zone. Why put it out there in the first place?

Mr. Davisonstated that the Growth ManagementAct wanted to see a variety of housing and densities.This was a
state goal.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any other questions or comments. He opened the discussion to the public and
asked if there were any proponents /opponents that would like to speak.

Mr. Worby, 200 Weems Way, stated his objections to R-2 housing in an R-1 zone.

Commissioner Miller and Mr. Worby debated the issue.

Commissioner Smith stated that in the futtue the public would still have the option to oppose a planned development
that used a duplex in an R-1 zone.

All Commissioners and Mr. Worby discussed the process a Planned Development goes thru to get approval.

Mr. Aaron Thomas, 111 Herlou Dr., expressed his concern that developers were deciding what was good for the
community and not the City Council and that it diminished the community strength.

Commissioner Torkelson: The developer still has to go through the City Council to get approval and the Council can
still turn them down.

CommissionerMiller explained that there are manydifferent types of living arrangementthat this type of housing
would work for (Accessibility).

Mr. Thomas: Still opposed to it.

Commissioner Smith explained that there are 2 different entities that look at plaimed developments and that the
public would still have an opportunity to voice their opinion.

Mr. Mark Weller, 110 Lyle Loop, expressed concern that people are not being heard.

Commissioner Torkelson explained that people were being encouraged to attend the open public meetings.

Mr. Thompson was concerned that the best interests of the public, those currently living here, were not being heard.

Mr. John Richards, 65 Lyle Ave., was concerned because the 10.28 tables didn't list Planned Development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that this ordnance and Plaimed Development where two different sections of the
code. What is being dealt with is a chart did not fit the ordinance; we were trying to make coincide.

PLANNING COMMISSION 6
MINUTES 11/04/14



Mr. Richards expressedconcernabout PlannedDevelopment Zoningand that currentzoningmay not be the same.

Commissioner Miller stated that the Planning Commission considers the impact of a development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that the density will be the same or less with a Planned Development.

Mr. Worby asked if a duplex could be put in an R-1 if it is a Planned Development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated a Planned Development and an R-1 are never the same.

Mr. Davison explained the comprehensive plan, zoning and density.

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Torkelson, Commissioner Miller and Mr. Worby about planned
developments and density.

Mr. Davison stated that a site plan is fixed. If it is to be changed at any time it has to be reviewed.

Commissioner Miller and Commissioner Torkelson tried to clarify density for Mr. Worby.

Katie Fountaine, 310 Southern Ave., stated she opposed any code adjustment that would increase the density of
housing. She was concerned that home ownership may not be a priority.

Chairman Quinnell; Asked if anyone else would like to speak.

Tisha Busey, 1312 City Reservoir Rd., questioned what the level ofreview was for allowing duplexes in R-1 zones.

Mr. Davison stated that it was a Level I review and is also reviewed by Code Enforcement.

Mrs. Busey asked if there were different things that had different levels of review.

Commissioner Miller stated that in a new development it gives the developer an option to designate one in ten for
duplex use.

Mrs. Busey asked if this would be automatic and not go before review.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that because there were ten lots in play it was a long plat that it would go before the
Hearing Examiner and a public hearing before it went to counsil.

Commissioner Miller stated that this was just the opening first step and that there were other possibilities.

Mr. Davison explained the process that the developer goes through to get approval.

Mrs. Busey stated that she had forgotten that this was for 10 lots or more. She did understand that it could be useful
as a buffer to hubs ofgreater activity.

Mr. Davison stated that this was useful in heavy traffic areas. Mr. Davison stated that a short plat goes to the hearing
examiner, public hearing and then to council for approval.

Mrs. Busey was concerned that there was a breakdown ofcommunication between the public and the city.

Mr. Bill Eller, 11 Terry Place, stated he is opposed to R-2 in an R-1 zone. He stated he would like this removed from
the code.

Chairman Quinnell Closed thepubliccomment session andproceeded withSelah Municipal Code, Title 10,
Chapter 10.28.
PLANNING COMMISSION 7
MINUTES 11/04/14



Commissioner Smith asked if the Commissioners could remove this section of the code.

Commissioner Quinnell asked if the Commissioners could remove 10.040 at this time.

Mr. Davison stated that it could not be done at this time. Another public hearing would be needed to re 10.040 from
the code.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that this zoning amendment would be the perfect blend if it was done in the right
circumstances.

Commissioner Miller stated that the Planned development with duplexes had to be designated upfront.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that if 10.040 was used it would still be discussed.

Conunissioner Smith asked if additional language could be added to 10.12.040 to make sure due diligence was
followed.

Mr. Davison explained that duplexes in an R-1 zone have to be designated and still it could be denied.

Chairman Quinnell stated the safety process was there.

Mr. Davison agreed that the safety process was there and if the City Council or the Hearing Examiner thought
something was wrong they could remand it back.

Commissioner Miller stated the he sees the safety net and that duplexes are not a bad thing.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any comments irom the public.

Mr. Davison asked Conunissioner Smith what kind of language she would like added.

Commissioner Smith stated something to the effect that consideration to the surrounding area... (Written word given
to Mr. Davison).

Commissioner Torkelson stated he thought it would take care of its self.

Chairman Quinnell stated that he did not know if additional language was necessary but it couldn't hurt.

Commissioner Smith stated that it would give her piece of mind.

Commissioner Quinnell read the finding and decision:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

FINDINGS AND DECISION

THIS MATTER having come on for public hearing before the City of Selah Planning Commission on November 4,
2014, following a remand from the Selah City Council for furtherconsideration.The Commission is reconsidering
zoning ordinance text amendments #2014-01 to Selah Municipal Code Title 10, (Zoning Ordinance), Chapter 10.28,
Table A-5 and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Note (1).

The members of the Commission present were MILLER. PENDLETON. QUINNELL. TORKELSON and
SMITH.

Legal notification pursuant to Selah Mimicipal Code was given on the 26th day ofOctober 2014. All persons present
were given the opportunity to speak for or against the proposed text amendments.

PLANNING COMMISSION 8
MINUTES 11/04/14

I W/
V



ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies

1. The proposed zoning ordinance text amendments will or will not, as indicated below, fhrther the
following goals and their underlying policies of the 2005 City of Selah Urban Growth Area Comprehensive
Plan.

WILL WILL NOT

GOAL FURTHER FURTHER N/A

a. Promote orderly growth XX

b. Avoid incompatible land uses XX

c. Encourage the provision of
housing to meet the needs of
all segments ofthe community XX

d. Preserve natural resources XX

e. Protect against flooding
and drainage problems XX

f. Maintain and improve air
and water quality XX

g. Maintain an efficient
transportation system XX

h. Provide efficient and

effective public services
at the lowest possible
cost XX

CHANGED CIRCUMSTANCES

The Planning Commission finds THE FOLLOWING CHANGES in circumstances which
justifies the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment;

The initial adoption ofSelah Municipal Code Title 10, Chapter 10.28 did not provide any
reference in Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes to the
provision of Chapter 10.12.040, which would permit duplexes on specifically designated lots
within new subdivisions zoned One Family Residential (R-1) The original purpose ofChapter
10.12.040 was to create a diversity of housing structiures and promote affordable housing within
the One Family Residential (R-I) zone. The Commission finds that with continued population
growth there is a need to provide for greater zoning flexibility when developing property. Said text
amendments are in furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare of the people
within the City ofSelah.

NEED FOR THE PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT
PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14



3. The PlanningCommissionFINDS that within the City of Selah and within Selah MunicipalCode
Title 10 there is a demonstrated and/or recognized need to expand the opportunity and flexibility
of Chapter 10.28,Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040RegulatoryNotes.

PUBLIC OPINION

4, The public testimony that was offered was IN OPPOSITION OF the proposed text amendments.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

5. The Planning Commissionfinds that environmental review has been completed on the proposal
and further finds that such environmental review was ADEQUATE.

CONTROLLING FACTORS

The Planning Commission determines that ALL OF THE ABOVE findings to be
controlling factors in its deliberations o.i the proposed zoning ordinance text
amendments.

DECISION

The Planning Commission, based upon the aforementioned findings and controlling factors, finds that the
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments IS in furtherance ofthe public health, safety and general
welfare of the people; therefore, the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments should be APPROVED
and additional amendatory language is to be added to Chapter 10.12.040;

Careful consideration ofadjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring
harmonious compatibility.

Motion to APPROVE by: SMITH Seconded by: TORKELSON

Vote: 5 to 0

H. Reports/Announcements

I. Chairman -

2. Commissioners -.

3. Staff-

I. Adjournment

Chairman Quinnell asked for a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Miller moved to adjoum and Commissioner
Torkelson seconded the motion. The meeting was adjourned at 7:29 pm with a voice vote of5-0.

PLANNING COMMISS ION 10
MINUTES 11/04/14

Chairman



TORKELSON
Construction, Inc.

January 7, 2015

P.O. Box 292

Selah, Washington 98942
Phone: (509) 697-3305

Fax: (509) 697-3504
torkelson@fairpoint.net

Carl Torkelson

Cell: (509) 945-0133

Candi Torkelson

Cell: (509) 961-7656

Why Pay $1000'sMore? Buy BuilderDirect!

City of Selah
City Council Members
113 West Naches Avenue

Selah. WA 98942

RE: Eagle Ridge Development

To Whom It May Concern:

I am writing this letter in regards to a Hearing Examiner's request for an adjustment of a chart within
Selah's Municipal Code that did not coincide with SMC 10.12.040 (please see attached ordinance). The
Hearing Examiner that the City hired as legal counsel for land development discovered the issue of the
ordinance not coinciding with a chart in Selah's Code (please see attached chart). I have provided you a
copy of the Hearing Examiners recommendation which was issued on March 14, 2014, which is
approximately 10 months ago. SMC 10.12.040 did not come before you to be changed or deleted and
this will be the 2nd time the Planning Commission has sent this to you. stating that they agree that the
chart needs corrected to match the Code.

It is unfortunate that I have had to wait 10 months for the City of Selah to adjust 1 chart to coincide with
an ordinance that has been in place for 10 years. I am the first to utilize SMC 10.12.040 and I feel I have
been more then patient for the City of Selah to fix an error in their code table. My project has been shut
down for almost a year while nothing has been done to correct this chart. It's not a mystery that in doing
Business, time is money!

1do not believe that it is wise for the City of Selah to not have a full-time Planner on staff. I have other
projects submitted with the same timing problem. By speaking with others, I am not alone in this
issue/problem. I do realize that Selah is growing, but if we have problems now, what is it going to be like
with just a part-time Planner?

I am hoping you can agree as a citizen of Selah, I should be able to use the ordinances that we have in
place. I also hope that deleting an ordinance that a citizen has proposed in mid-process of a land
development proposal, would not be the correct or legal way of handling this issue.

Your consideration for following the Hearing Examiner's and Planning Commission's recommendation
would be appreciated.

Sincerely,

Carl L. Torkelson

Why Pay $1000^s More? Buy BuilderDirect!
Builder reserves the right to change floor plan or elevations



10
.1

2.
04

0-
D

es
ig

na
te

d
tw

o-
fa

m
ily

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

lo
ts

.
S

d
B)

Q

W
ith

in
ap

ro
po

se
d

lan
dd

ivi
sio

no
ft

en
or

mo
re

lot
st

en
pe

rce
nt

of
the

lot
sm

ay
be

de
sig

na
ted

for
af

utu
re

tw
o-f

am
ily

dw
ell

ing
.T

he
pr

op
os

ed
lot

(s)
sh

all
be

co
ns

ide
red

by
the

rev
iew

ing
bo

dy
an

d,
on

ce
the

lot
loc

ati
on

(s)
are

ap
pro

ve
d,

the
lot

(s)
sha

llb
ec

lea
rly

ide
nti

fie
do

nt
he

rec
ord

ed
su

bd
ivi

sio
np

rov
idi

ng
pu

bli
cd

isc
los

ure
of

su
ch

ap
pro

va
l.



STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments toSelah Municipal Code Title 10, Chapter
10.28,Table 5-Aand Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes to implement SMC,Title 10.12.040. This recommendation Ls
supported by a recommendation by the Hearina Examiner.

CHAPTER 10.28

PERMUTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES
TABLE A-5

See Chapter 10.06.020 for an explanation ofUse Categories

CITY OF SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE, TITLE 10. CHAPTER 28, TABLE A-5

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT | LDSF R-l R-2 R-3 B-1 B-2 M-1

MINING / REFINING / OFF-SITE

HAZARDOUS WASTE

TREATMENT

Asphalt roofing maicrial manuracturc. rock crushing 3

Mining*, includingsand and gravel pits 3

Offsite liazardous waste (realmentand storage racilities* 3 3

RESIDENTIAL

Accessory structure, use or building* 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

[}etached single Taniilydwelling* 1 1 1

Manufacturedhomc*/Mobilehome* (See 10.0S.I40) 1

Two family dwelling (dupin) • lii.> l] i hi! 1 1

Multiple family dwelling*; 0-S DUA

<6-12 DUA

> 12 DUA

2

2

1

1

1

Manufacturedhome parks* (Sec I0.28.0401e]) 3

Retirement apaitmcnis
2 1

Home occupations* (See 10.28.040[a])

Minor Home Occupations* (See I028.040[o]) 1 1 1 1 1 •

MajorKomeOccupations* (Sec I0.28.040(o]) 2 2 2 2 2

• ' ' '

1

CoC{e.CMor^ Irv



March 14,2014

Law Office of Patrick D. Spurgin
411 North 2*® Street

Yakima, Washington 98901
Telephone: 509.248.4282

fax: 509.575.5661

Mr. David Kelly, City Adimnistiator
City ofSelah
115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

RE: Hearing Examiner Recommendation on Preiiminaiy Plat ofEagleRidgePhases2,3, and
4 (912.82.13-01)

Dear Mr. Kelly:

Enclosed is the original referenced recommendation to the City Council. An electronic version
was forwarded toDennis Davison, Community Plaimer on M^h 13,2013.

Patncm). Sfni^in, HearingExaminer



City ofSelah, Washington
OCBce of the Hearing Eixaminer

In the matter of tiie Review for the 37 Lot
**Preiuninaiy Plat of Eagle Ridge,Phases
2,3 and 4** in the vicinity ofSontomi
Avenue and South 7"* Street

Submitted by Torkelson Construction

Selah File No. 912.82.13-01

HEARING EXAMINER
RECOMMENDATION

I. INTRODUCTION.

Torkelson Construction ("Torkelson" or "the Applicant") seeks to subdivide three parcels of
property in proximity to the intersection ofSouthern Avenue and South 7''' Street The property

previously approved for subdivision in 1994, in several phases. Only one phase (Eagle
Ridge, Phase 1) was developed under the approval. Other, later development of the property
outside ofPhase 1 was accomplished through three short subdivisions. An open record hearing
on the current preliminary plat proposal was conducted February 26, 2014. The Hearing
Examiner viewed the site on the same date. Hie Community Planner provided a staff report
prior to the hearing along with a setof hearing exhibits that included public comment letters, a
letter fiom state of Washington Department ofTransportation notitying the City of Selah of the
approval of funds for preliminary en^eering fimds for improvements to streets in southwest
Selah, application materials for street improvement construction funds (including Valley View
Avenue, South 3"* Street and Soutfaem Avaiue (east ofSouth 3"" Street), and the preliminary plat
showing plaimed phases of subdivision construction. The mchibits were supplemented at and
after the hearing with correspondence related toa 1994-era plan for an access road toproperty to
the south of the subject property, and with excerpts fiom the Transportation Research Board
Highway Capacity Manned Volume 3: IntemptedFlow (2010) provided byCommunity Planner
Dennis DavisoiL Three members of the public provided comments at the hearing. Public
comments related to adequacy ofstormwater managemoit, trafGc safety and capacity, pedestrian
safety, consistency of thedevelopment with the character of the neighborhood (diqilexes versus
single family structures) andprivacy protection, andconsistency of information contained in the
environmental review documents withreviews conducted forearlier projects in the area.

H. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION.

This preliminary platshould beapproved, subject to conditions toassure compliance with
subdivision design and zoning standards and the protection ofthe public health, safety and
welfare.

Based on the staff report and exhibits, the viewing of the site, comments received at the open
record hearing and in writing, and a review of pertinent develoinnait regulations and the 2005
Selah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan (^2005 Con^ehensive Plan") provisions, the Hearing



Examiner makes the following

m. FINDINGS.

1. APPLICANT AND PROPERTY OWNER.

The preliminary plat application was filed by Torkelson Construction, Inc., P.O. Box 292, Selah,
WA, 98942. Theproperly ownos ofrecord areCarl Torkelson andCandr Torkelson.

2. LOCATION.

The properties are located at on the South side ofSouthnn Avenue approximately one half mile west
ofSouthFirstStreetandextending to the southend of SoudiSeventh Street

3. PARCEL NUMBERfSI.

The Yakima County Assessors Tax Parcel Numbers for the subject properties are 181302-42471,
42474 and 42475.

4. APPLICATION.

The application is forpreliminary subdivision approval of"Eagle Ridge Phases 2,3 and4" a
16.5 acre, 37-lot subdivision. Tfadrty-four (34) lotsaredesignated forsingle family residences
andthe preliminary platrequests thatthree lotsbe designated as"two&mily residential lots".
Two of these lots finnt on Southem Avenue andthethird is located at theproposed southem
terminus ofLacey Avenue. Lotsizes for the vdiole project range fiom 8,024 sq. ft to 81,936 sq.
ft. The proposed residentialdensity is 2.42 dwellingunits/acre. Storm water would be retained on
site. The preliminary plat (Hearing E^bit 10) indicates that development would be completed in three
phases, andassigns lotnumbers based ondiephase towhich die lots areassigned. Atthehearing, the
Applicant soughtto retain flexibilityin reconfiguring the phaseboundaries basedon future
considerations. The plat information does notseek relieffiom citydevelopment standards. Theproposed
utility lines and streets areconfigured to generally allow extensitm to adjacent undeveloped property,
other than for a centrally located short cul-de-sac.

5. CURRENT SITE CONDITION AND ZONING

Thesite is zoned One-Family Residential (R-1) andis vacant. Theproperty is sloped downward
south to northwrith slopes(basedon topographical lineson the platmapandwithoutregardto
proposed lot lines) ranging fiom 30% more or less in the vicinityofthe Phase 4 lots to 9% more
or less on the northernportions ofthe property.Hie site abuts SouthemAvenue, which at that
point isapaved street ^ feet wide witiiin a55-foot wide light-of-way (30 feet dedicate! on
South and 25 feet dedicatedon North). Southon Avenue, east ofthe site, is hard surfaced 24 feet
widewithin a 55-foot wideright-of-way. Southern Avenue is currmitly designated as a Collector
street. South Seventh Street is hard surfeced 32 feet wide between curbs. No sidewalks have
been installed on the existing local access streetsadjacentto die property (Lacey Avenue, and
Terrace Drive), nor on Southem Avenue adjacentto the property. City water and sewer lines

Page 2
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



have been installedin currentlydeveloped streetsadjacentto the subjectproperty. Hydrants
connected to existing water distribution lines are located on Southern Avenue, South Seventh
Street and Lacey Avenue. An 18" concrete mortar-joint Naches-Selah Irrigation District
irrigation water line is located beneath Southern Avoiue adjacent to the proposal.

6. NEIGHBORING ZONING AND LAMP USE.

Adjacent properti^ to the South and East are located in the City ofSelah and zoned One-Family
Residential (R-1). Properties to the North and West, located in unincorporated Yakima County,
are zoned Single Family Residential (R-1) on the county zoning map. Land use on neighboring
properties is as follows

• North: Larger lots containing single &mily residences
• Northeast A Multiple Family Residential Developmoit—''Southern Estates"
• South: Steep vacant hillside
• East: Eagle Ridge Phase 1, Oakwood Manor, South Terrace Addition and ()ueensview

Subdivisions

• West: A single, single &mily residence and a large vacant parcel.

Density in three nearby residoitial short subdivisions (Oakwood Manor,South TerraceAddition
and Queensview) is 3.9 dwellings p^ acre. The adjacent EagleRidgePhase 1 is approximately
3.1 dwellings per acre.

7. PUBUC NOTICE

Based on the Community Planner's afBda^it in the project files forthisapplication, the notice of
the application and enviroimiratal review was m^ed to land owners widiin 600 feet of the
project on February 7, 2014. Records also indicate that notice was published on February 9,
2014 in the Yakima Herald newspaper. Public comments noted diat therewas an inaccuracy in
the mailed notice regarding the file number for the environmental review documents. The file
number was variously given as 971.82.13-01 and 971.82.13-04. Comments also observed that
the notice makesno referenceto earliersubdivision processing and relatedenvironmental review
undertaken in 1993 and 1994. TTie notices were spedfic as to die proposal, notwithstanding the
absence of a discussion regarding the ultimate disposition ofall aspects ofthe 1993 preliminary
plat. The inconsistency in file number referoices may have had the potential for causing some
confusion, but given the specificity of theproject discussion and the invitation to the public to
lookat the documents on file priorto the hearing, it is difficult to discern substantial prejudice
that would warrant reissuance ofnotice.

8. ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.

The City of Selah issued a Determination ofNonsignificance (DNS) on February 10, 2014 and
thecomment period expired February 24,2014 according to Om public notice. The record gives
no indication of any intention bytheSEPA Responsible Offidal to modify the DNS or entertain
additional comments, altbnngh the notice advis^ the public that comment period might be the
only opportunity for publiccomment on environmental impacts. Several publiccomments were

Pages
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.D-01



ofifered regarding the environmental impacts of the project and the adequacy of the review
process. However, the ad^uacy of environmental review is outside the scope of the Hearing
Exammer's jurisdiction during flie graeral course ofpreliminary plat review. See Chapter 11.40
SMC regarding SEPA procedures.

2005SELAH URBAN AREACOMPREHENSIVE PLANDRSIGNATTON.

The subject property and surrounding areas are designated as Low Density Residential
authorizing amaximum density offive (5) dwelling units per acre.

10. PROJECT ANALYSIS

a. Review Criteria.

Ahearing examiner recommendation is to be based on adetomination ofwhether the proposed
plat complies with the standards set forth in Chapter 10.50 SMC and those adopted by reference,
including but not limited to, appropriate provisions for drainage, roads, alleys and other public
ways, water supply, sanitary sewerage disposal, parks, playgrounds, fire protection facilities
minimum lot size and other pubUc and private facilities and improvements and provisions
conned in any of the city's adopted comprehensive plans (i.e., land use, sewage, storm
drainage, transportation, water, etc.) and the zoning ordinance. SMC 10.50.025. Sub^vision
design standards are set out inSMC 10.50.041 through SMC 10.50.046.' As described inSMC
10.50.000, the pur^se ofthe standards generally are to "to lessen congestion in the streets and
highways, to provide for adequate light and air, to fimilitate adequate provisions for water,
sew^e, parks and recreation areas, sites for schools and school grounds and other public
requirements, [and] to provide for proper ingress and egress," all in furtherance ofpublic health,
srfety, and general welfere. The hearing examiner may, at the examiner's discretion, recommend
higher standards than those set forth in the subdivision and zoning provisions ofthe Title 10
SMC if the examiner determines it isnecessary to protect the health, safety, welfare and public
interest ofthe city. SMC 10.50.026.

b. Application ofthe Review Criteria

(1) Conformance to the 2005 Selah Urban GrowthArea Comprehensive Plan:

The Low Density Residential designation for the subject property on the adopted 2005 Future
Land Use M^ provides for a density of 5dwellings per acre. Considered in its entirety, and
assummg that three of the lots would be developed as duplexes, the 37 lot plat has adensity of

' -ae hearing may recommend to the oily coimcO an exception fiom the standards when, in the examiner's
opimon, un^e hardship may created as aresult ofstrict compliance with the requirements upon specific
yphcatton for such an excqiUon. Applications for excqitions must include ^prc^Hriate substantiating fects to show

^ No sqiaratc plication for my exception demonstrating any hardship was made in

Paged
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



2.4 units per acre, which would comply with the density limitation in the land use
Comprehensive Plan.

Consistency of duplexes with Low Density Residential Future Land Use designation:
Some public comments indicated that di^lex development on three of the lots would be
inconsistent Awith the Low Density Residential designation. However, the Low Density
Residential designation does not preclude diq>lexes, but rather leaves the control of the mix of
housing types tothe zoning ordinance. (2005 Comprehensive Plan p.35)

Consistency of the proposed development with Comprehensive Plan lyansportation
Policies: Public comments noted that the intersection ofSouthem Avenue and SouthFirst Street
provides a level of service below that set in the Comprehensive Plan, and the proposed
development would ecacerbate the level ofservice shortfall. The level of service is argued to
onlybe effectively improved by signalization of the intersection.

Policy TRAN 6.2 inthe 2005 Conqirehensive Plan provides that major land use changes
only be allowed "v4ien those proposals accompany specific documentation or plans [j/c]
showing how the transportation system can adequately support existing and proposed
development needs." Thescope of the 'transportation system" referred to seems at the least to
beto bethose street segments (including intersections) necessarily carrying trafiGc generated by
the project In the present case, the first stop-controll^ intersection on the segment ofSouthem
Avenue is eastbound at South Fiith Street Further east, Southon Avenue intersects with South
Third Street There are accordingly several points of access into the city street grid. The staff
report contains a factual report of the "carrying capacity" of Southem Avenue west of South
First Street, indicating that the street can carry 6,000 vehicle trips per day. This is based on
calculations in the Highway Ctqfacity MamuA. The report further notes that 2014tiafSc counts
on Southem Avenue west of South First Street show 1,540 vehicle trips perday. Onthis basis is
does notappear that additional trip generation fiom the project would overtax the "transportation
system" capacity in the area.

The staffreport does not address level ofservice issues at the South First Street/Southem
Avenue intersectiorL The2005 Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element recognizes thatthe
Southem Avenue/South First Street intersection will continue to fall below established level of
service standards until such time as the intersection is signalized. This shorttell is true
irrespective of theadditional traffic predicted for theproposed subdivisioiL In addition, the2005
Comprehensive Plan makes the improvement of the intersection a top priority. There is no
mformation in the record to indicate that intersections in the road segments necessarily bearing
project-generated traffic will M below LOS C,vdiich is thatstandard adopted forthethose road
segments in the 2005 Comprehensive Plan, Hearing Exhibits 8 and 9 were provided by the
Community Planner inresponse to comments regarding theCity's commitment to improving the
intersection, and indicate that aigmeering has been funded for work intended ultimately to
improve traffic on street segments that include South Third Street, Valley View and Southem
Avenue. These improvements to ofiier elements of the transportation gridas are reflected in the
hearing exhibits might beexpected to ease thepressure, tiiough to a degree notquantified in the
hearing record. If no other options for accessing the street grid were available other than the
South First Street/Southem Avenue intosection, the Applicant might be hard-pressed to show
that the tran^rtation tystem can adequately siq}port the additional traffic. It does appear

Pages
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



clearly possible that traffic j&om new development that might elect to use the intersection at peak
traffic hours would contribute to the level ofservice deficiency. However, given the alternative
access points, the recognition ofthe need to address the level ofservice atthe mtersectioii, the
calculated carrying capacity ofaffected road segments, and evidence ofefforts moving forward
to improve thesystem in thevicinity, diepotential for contribution does not lead to a conclusion
that the transportation system overall cannot adequately handle the vehicle trips generated from
theproposal asaddressed in the 2005 Comprehensive Plan.

Concurrency Issues: Comments also raised questions of compliance with Growth
Management Act "concurrency" requirements. The Act requires prohibition ofa development if
it causes the level of service on a locally owned transportation fecility to decline below the
standards adopted inthe transportation element ofthe comprehensive plan, unless transportation
improvements or strategies to accommodate the impacts of development are maHe concurrent
with the development. ROW 36.70A.070(6)(b). As noted, the Mure of the South First
Street/Southern Avenue intersection to meet the established level of service is predicted to
continue whether ornot the proposal is developed, based on information in the traffic impact
study. The project will potentially contribute additional traffic to this condition but will not
cause it tofell below the applicable LOS, particularly since the LOS isalready not being met and
therealternative means ofaccessing the traniq)ortation grid.

(2) Adequacy ofcompliancewitii design standards:

The application does not seek relief from the design standards inSMC 10.50.041 through SMC
10.50.046. The plat generally shows compliance with those standards. The development
includes extensions of existing water and sevra lines. The street design provides for fiiture
extension of streets to serve prop^es to the west offee plat boundary. Sidewalks and curbing
shown onfee typical roadway section onfee plat conform to standards, except that barrier curbs
at intersections are not clearly indicated onfee plat Inaddition, Phase 3 includes paving of a 24
foot width of Southern Avenue (its current paved width) and installation of a sidewalk on fee
south side of fee street This would extent fee 24-foot wide portion of Southern Avenue to fee
east of fee project Any ^roval of fee plat should appropriately be conditional upon
compliance wife design shown infee plat, as supplemented wife information designed to assure
compliance wife fee design standards. It is noted that city standards would only require a 50-
foot wide right of way for Southern Avenue, despite fee curmit 55 foot right of way. The
Community Planner recommended a condition allowing fee Applicant to opt down to a 50 foot
right of way. However, fee street standards are minifniim standards, and an applicant is not
bound to do no more than fee standards require. It is consequently not clear wh^ pinpose is to
be served by conditioning fee qiproval on a potmfial reduction in fee design of fee Southern
Avenue improvements.

(3) Adequacy of compliance wifefee zoning ordinance:

The preliminary plat indicates a desire to designate three offee lots as "two family residential"
lots. Public coimnents objected to fee establishment of fee two family lotsas showiL The lots
would besituated onSouthern Avenue and at fee south end ofLacey Avoiue as 'Uses

Page 6
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



allowed within a zoning district are specifically those listed as Class 1 permitted. Class 2
administrative or Class 3 conditional uses within Cliq)ter 10^8, Table A,." pursuant to SMC
10.08.010(6). Table10.28A-S shows diq>lexes to be permissible in the R-2and R-3 districts, but
not in the R-1 or any other zoning district However, SMC 10.12.040 allows 10% ofthe lots in a
subdivision of 10lots or more to bedesignated fora "fiiture two family dwelling," solong as the
lots meet specified minimum lot sizerequirements. SMC 10.12.040 does not indicate what type
of review would be applicable to the actual duplex development on the designated lots. This
creates an ambiguity regarding compliance with the zoning ordinance, 'vririch is a required
consideration on subdivision review. At hearing, however, the Applicant indicated that the
designation ofthe lotswasnotessential forthe project For thesakeof administrative economy,
since the designation was controvosial and ultimately not essential to the Applicant, it will be
appropriate to remove the designationreferencefinm &e preliminaryplat

Lot size in the R-1 is basedon the slopeand utility infiastructure presenton the property.
SMC 10.12.030. The plat does not indicate the slope of each lot, and the ordinance does not
prescribe or identify a methodology for determining slope for minimum lot size purposes.
However, the plat was prepared by a professional land surveyor, and appears generally to meet
slope requirements that would provide for a minimum acre lot size. In absence of substantial
evidence to the contrary, the lot sizes appear to comply with SMC 10.12.030.

(4) Provisioiis for schools:

There is predicted increase in the student population of 15.5 students as a result of the proposed
subdivision. No school district comments or comments fiom any other party indicate that the
school system will not be able to adequately absorb the predicted increase.

(5) Increased standards for protection ofpublic health, safety or welfare:

If there is substantial evidence ofan impact to public health, safety or wel&re fiom the proposed
project, notwithstanding its compliance with the standards in Title 10 SMC, higher standards
addressing those impacts nuy be imposed. Several conunents raised issues about pedestrian
safety, particularly related to the increasing numbers of children in the area. However, none of
the comments suggested that implemraitation of improvonents to the streets, sidewalks and
lighting required under the subdivision standards would leave a substantial residual safety risk
resultingfiom this project that warrantsimposition ofhigher standards for the project.

Comments also raised concerns about the proliferationofon-stieet parking on Southem Avenue
related to other developments. The comments characterized this proliferation as a safety issue
that would be made worse by die additional traffic generation fiom the proposed project
Without diluting the problems that may be presented by the other developments, it is again not
clear this would provide a basis for higher standards for the proposed subdivision, which is a
conventional subdivision already subject to higher standards than govemed earlier development
in the area.

As noted, an 18" concrete mortar joint Naches-Selah Irrigation District line is located beneath
Southem Avenue adjacent to the proposal. This type ofpipe is r^rtedly being replaced with

Page?
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82J3-0I



modem PVC pipe. Ifimprovements to Southern Avenue are made without replacing the pine
then there would be aconflict between plans for replacement and general city policy regarding
avoidmg street cuts for five years foUowing new paving. On this basis, it is in the pubUc interest
to provide for replacement ofthe existing pipe within the length ofSouthem Avenue that is
improved in association with Phase 3ofthe proposed plat

c. Phasing issues

^e preliminary plat depicts three phases ofdevelopment The AppUcant wishes to not be bound
by the specific boundanes shown for each phase. The provisions of Chapter 10.50 SMC do not
^uire phasing, though they do refer to phasing except in the final plat review requirements
The sequencmg construction ofimprovements is not specificaUy caUed out as a matter to be
prescribed in prelimin^ plat approval, although it may be deemed to be necessary to the
protection of the public health, safety and welfare, such preservation of street surfaces, for
exainple. In the present case, the completion ofPhase 4^ipears to depend on the prior extension
ofutilities in Phase 3. The final plat standards do contemplate phased construction and phased
review by the city of improvements. On the other hand, phased development is expressly
considered in Title 9 SMC, related to utility system development These considerations do not
suggest a basis for a specific recommendation by the hearing examiner for flexibility in the
phased development ofapreliminary plat in absence offurther information, particularly since the
platwith allnotations was thebasis forpublic notice.

From the foregoing findings, the Hearing Examiner makes the following

IV. CONCLUSIONS.

1. The Hearing Exammer has jurisdiction to conduct an open record hpairing on the
application for apreliminary plat review, and make a recommendation to the Selah City Council.
The Hearing Examiner does not have jurisdiction to consider impacts associated with previously
authorized development activities or theadequacy ofenvironmental review.

2. Irregularities in file number refoences in public notice documents did not result in any
demonstrated prejudice to the publicor anyidentified individuals.

3. The proposed preliminary plat isconsistent with the 2005 Conqirehensive Plan future
landuse designation and transportation policies.

4. The proposed preliminary plat, ifproperly conditioned, complies with subdivision and
zoning standards, andis consistent with public health, safety and welfare.

Page 8
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01

RECOlVffMF'.NDATION.



rae a^H^on &r prelmtoaiy plat review by Torkelson Construetlotl, Inc. for "Preliminary Plat
Phases 2, 3and 4" as specified in the application mflterialg (File No 912 8213-

01 should be APPROVED SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

nreliminll^ " CondWon 2, all design and/or improvement notations indicated on the
i- f conditions ofpreliminaiy plat approval (i.e., private easement widths andocations, lot sikand lot configuration, etc.). This condition is not Intended to limit the Public Works

Department mthe exercise ofits authorities under other provisions ofthe Selah Municipal Code.

2. None ofthe lots shall be designated as "future two family dwelling" lots as the term is

from ale M references to "Two Famdy Residential Lot Designation" shaU be removed
3. Final lot dimensions and lot area must substantially conform to the preliminaiy plat.

4. Apreliminaiy engineering report and/or plan, prepared by aLicensed Professional
Engineer, demonstrating the feasibility ofconstructing all public improvements required by Selah
Municipal Code, Chapter 10.50, must be submitted to and approved by the Public Works Department for
each separately designated phase ofdevelopment prior to commencement ofconstruction.

5. Cons^ction plans and specifications must be reviewed and approved by the Public
Works Department prior to commencement ofconstruction ofeach separately designated phase of
development. Specifications for improvements shown on the preliminary plat are minimum specification
which may be superseded 1^ the conditions contained herein or by specific conditions as approved by the
Public Works Department Upon completion ofconstruction and prior to final plat approval (ofeach
development phase for which final plat approval issought), reproducible final "as-built" construction
plans and awritten certificatron by aLicensed Professional Engineer that said improvements were
completed in accordance with the City ofSelah Design and Construction Standards dated March, 2012,
must be submitted to the Public Works Department for approval. All required compaction and inspection
reports shall also besubmitted to the Public Works Department

6. All lots must be served with afull range ofpublic services/private utilities. AH public
services/private utilities must be underground and installed prior to the surfacing ofstreets. There shall be
amoratorium on street cuts for aperiod offive (5) years fiom the date ofeach phase recording.

7. Street improvements must beconstructed tocitystandards. Mountable curbs are
permissible except atradius returns atintersections, which require barrier curbs ofsuitable design.

8. During the construction of portions ofthe plat designated as Phase 3, the existing 12
inch water distribution line located inSouthern Avenue shall beextended tothe west property line of
Phase 3.

9. Fire hydrants which meet the specifications ofSelah Code, Chapter 11.30 must be
provided and installed by the developer atlocations identified by the Selah Fire Chief.

10. Storm water drainage facilities toaccommodate runoffgenerated within the plat, and
historical drainage which crosses the property, must be installed in compliance with adrainage fiicilities
plan prepared by aLicensed Professional Engineer and approved by the Public Works Department. As

Page 9 „
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



part ofthe drainage study the Department ofEcology shall be contacted to determine ifa"storm water
permit" is required. waici

Public Worics Di^tof°^ developer to the specifications of the

n ® sidewalk, and the improvement ofSouthern Avenue toa super half street (24 wide) is required along the North boundaiy ofLots 3-1 and 3-2 as part ofPhase 3
construction.

1* /o ^ reserved for sight distance vision triangles shall be shown and noted on the finalplat. (Selah Code,Chapter 10.50).

14. Dust control measures shall be implemented as required by the Yakima Regional Clean
Air Authonty rules and regulations. The Developer shall advise the PubUc Works Department ofthe
name and phone number ofthe contact person to report alleged dust control violations.

15. Prior to toe recording ofPhase 2(and subsequent Phases 3and 4) all required plat
improvements (i.e., utilities, streets, dramage fecilities, etc.) shall be installed and accepted by toe City or
asurety bond pledged to ensure installation within two years offinal plat approval for toe respective
phases shall be issued totoeCity.

16. All required street signs, posts and appurtenances, including end-of-road barricades at
toe end ofeach dead-end street (Phase 2: Lacey Avenue; Phase 3: South Seventh Street, and Terrace
Drive; Phase 4; Lacey Avenue) shall be supplied by toe developer and installed by toe City.

17. Minimum ten (10) foot wide utility easements shall be located adjacent to all dedicated
public street right-of-ways and such additional easements as may be required to facilitate utility
placement shall be designated ontoe final plat asdirected by toe Public Works Director.

18. Irrigation easements and distribution tocilities shall be provided as specified by toe
Naches-Selah Irrigation District unless specifically waived by toe District in writing

19. The 18" concrete mortar jointNaches-Selah Irrigation District line located beneath
Southern Avenue shall bereplaced during Phase 3construction with 18" PVC piping approved by toe
Naches-Selah IrrigationDistrict

20. The Dedication and Waiver ofClaims language ontoe final plat shall reference awaiver
ofdirect access.

21. Thefollowing notes shall beplaced ontoefinal plat map(s):

"The owner(s) shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in interest hereby covenant and agree
to retain all surface water generated within toeplaton-site."

The owner(s) shown hereon, their grantees and assignees in int^est hereby covenant and agree
toperpetually maintain toe natural drainage swale adjacent to their property. The drainage swale
shall notbealtered, relocated, nor shall natural drainage beimpeded.

Page 10
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01



*1- Lt? ' financial method, in the amount of 15% ofthe cost offte pubhc improvements (as each final plat phase is submitted) (i.e, roads, sidewalks, street lights
drainage facilities, sewer collection and water distribution facilities, etc.) shall be remitted to the City and
held for apenod oftwo years to guarantee against defects ofworkmanship and materials

DATED THIS 13"^ DAY OF MARCH, 2014

Page 11
Eagle Ridge 2,3 &4
912.82.13-01

D.SPUiy3D4
GEXAN



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-1

Title: Resolution establishing January 27, 2015 as the public hearing date to
consider the adoption of the "Selah Transit Development Plan".

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Andrew Potter, Assistant to the City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Pass the resolution to set the public hearing.

Background / Findings & Facts:

For the past several years Yakima Transit and the City of Yakima have simply
included us in their plan. Last year in September we were asked to adopt our
own plan. Although this is a six year plan it will be updated yearly with an
annual report from the previous year and a description and projected budget for

the following six.

Recommended Motion:

Move to approve the Resolution establishing January 27, 2015 as the public
hearing date to consider the adoption of the "Selah Transit Development Plan.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING JANUARY 27,2015 AS THE PUBLIC
HEARING DATE TO CONSIDER THE ADOPTION OF THE "SELAH

TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN."

WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Transportation requires the City to publish,
annually, its Transit Report and to update its Six-year Transit Development Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt the Selah Transit Development Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the City wishes to hold a public hearing to invite comments; and,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, as follows:

That January 27,2015 at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practical, in the Council
Chambers, City Hall Bldg., 115 W. Naches Avenue, Selah, WA is established as the date,
time and place ofa public hearing to hear and decide said "Selah Transit Development Plan"
and that notice of said public hearing shall be provided as required by law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, THIS 13"' DAY OF JANUARY, 2015.

ATTEST: John Gawlik, Mayor

Dale Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-2

Title; Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to accept the 2013 DWSRF Water
System Improvements as complete and approve final Progress Estimate No. 8
and Project Acceptance

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Public Works Director

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $51,371.03

Funding Source: Water Fund 411

Staff Recommendation:

Acceptance and approval.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The 2013 DWSRF Water System Improvements, DWSRF Contract No.:

DM 12-952-093 has been completed and Progress Estimate number 8 has been
designated as the Final for work performed by Scout Lake Construction, Inc.,

through December 17, 2014. Progress Estimate number 8 shows a payment of
$1,819.49 due to the contractor and a retainage fee of $51,371.03 to be released
after the conditions listed in the attached letter from Huibregtse, Louman

Associates, Inc. have been met.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Accept and approve resolution for final payment.

Record of ail prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date:

2/25/2014

Action Taken:

Council awards construction contract to Scout Lake

Construction, Inc.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text-

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. TITLE OF ITEM

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ACCEPT THE

2013 DWSRF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS AS COMPLETE,
APPROVING FINAL PROGRESS ESTIMATE NUMBER 8, AND

AUTHORIZING RELEASE OF RETAINAGE

WHEREAS, the City of Selah contracted with Scout Lake Construction, Inc. to perform work for
the 2013 DWSRF Water System Improvements, DWSRF Contract No.: DMI2-952-093, and

WHEREAS, Selah Public Works has reviewed the work performed by Scout Lake Construction,
Inc. on this project and believes it has been completed satisfactorily; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, the Mayor accept the 2013 DWSRF Water System Improvements as complete,
that the Final Progress Estimate Number 8 is approved, and authorizing release of retainage.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this 13th day of January, 2015.

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert F. Noe, City Attomey

RESOLUTION NO.

John Gawlik, Mayor



♦♦♦HLA
Huibregtse.Louman Associates, It

Civil Engineering <• Land Surveying *Planning

December 22, 2014

Jeffrey T. Loumaii, PE 'll-rryD. Alapeieri. PE Stephanie J. Ray, PE
Theodore W. Pooler, PE Gent W. Soidcj. PE Dustin 1,. Posien, PE

u k I t • . r Michael T. Battle.PE Tlnwthy D. Fries, PI.S StephenS. Hazaard, PEHuibregtse, Louman Associates, inc EncT. Hermg, pi,s josiin l. Bellamy, pe Michael r. HcIi, pe

City of Selah
222 South Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

Attn: Mr. Joe Henne

Public Works Director

Re: City of Selah
2013 DWSRF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
DWSRF Contract No.: DM12-952-093

HLA Project No.: 12129C
Final Progress Estimate and Project Acceptance

Dear Joe:

Enclosed is Progress Estimate No, 8 designated as the Final for work performed by Scout Lake
Construction, inc., through December 17, 2014, in connection with their contract on the above
referenced project. The amount due the Contractor of $1,819.49 is net after retainage, as per
the contract documents. We recommend this Final Progress Estimate be considered and
accepted by the Selah City Council.

This letter also serves as our recommendation for acceptance of this project by the City of
Selah. We have reviewed the work performed by Scout Lake Construction, inc. on this project
and believe it has been completed satisfactorily. Please provide us a copy of the Council
resolution authorizing project acceptance.

Enclosedfor your action is the "Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract" to be completed
and sent to the Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and Employment
Security Department in Olympia. Forward one (1) copy each of the Notice of Completion to the
Department of Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department as soon as the Selah City Council has accepted the project.

The retainage on this project in the amount of $51,371.03 should be released to Scout Lake
Construction, Inc., after acceptance of the project and when the following conditions have been
satisfied:

1. There are no liens or claims for labor and materials furnished on this project filed
against the retainage,

2. A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance of this project by
the City of Selah.

3. The City has received Notice of Completion clearance from the Department of
Revenue, Department of Labor and Industries, and the Employment Security
Department relative to this contract. Please provide a copy of each to our office.

G \PftOJ6CTS\20l2\l2l29C SS 2013 DWSRF WATER SYS - SCOUT LAKE CONST\PROGRESS ESTlMATES^FINAL PROG EST NO 8^2014-12.22 PROG6ST NO8
FtNAL LTR.rt

2803 River Road ♦ Yakima,WA98902 <• (509)966-7000 « FAX(509) 965-3800 4 www.hladvU.com



City of Seiah
December 19, 2014
Page 2.

4 The City has received the following from Huibregtse, Louman Associates, inc.
(HLA):

a. HLA has confirmed that all punch list items identified during the final walk
through inspection have been completed.

b. HLA has delivered two (2) neatly marked full-size sets and one (1) H"x17"
set of record drawings to the City of Selah on December 17, 2014.

c. A notarized certificate from the Contractor which states that all labor and
materials furnished on this project have been paid for is attached.

d. The required project labor and equal employment opportunity documents
have been delivered to the City of Selah on December 22, 2014.

We would appreciate receiving a copy of your Council Resolution authorizing release of
retainage.

Please contact this office ifyou have questions or ifwe may furnish additional information.

Very truly yours,

Terry D. Alapeteri, PE

TDA/crf

Enclosures

Copy; Scout Lake Construction, Inc.
Steven Sziebert, HLA
Caroline Fitzsimmons, HA
Correspondence File

G \PROJECTS\2012M2129C SE 2013 DWSRF WATER SYS - SCOUT LAKE CONSTIPROGRESS ESTIMATES1FINAL PROG EST NO 812014-12-22 PROG EST NO 8
FINAL LTR.rtf



City of Selsh
222 So. Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

TO: Scout Lake Construction, Inc.
P.O. Box 1060

Selah, WA 98942

Description

CHEDULE A - WATER DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMEi

1 Mobilization

2 Project Temporary Traffic Control

3 Clearing and Grubbing

Removal of Structure and Obstructiort

5 Crushed Surfacing Base Course

6 Crushed Surfacing Top Course

Shoring or Extra Excavation

8 Select Backfill, as Directed

9 D.I. Pipe for Water Main 8 In. Diam.

10 D.I. Pipe for Water Main 6 In. Diam.

11 D.I. Pipe for Water Main 4 In. Diam,

12 8-Inch Gate Valve and Valve Box

13 Comb. Air Release/Air Vacuum Assembly 2 in.

14 Blowoff Assembly

15 6-Inch Hand Dug Tee Assembly

16 Casing Pipe In Place 16 In. Diam.

17 IHydrant Assembly
18 Bollard

19 Service Connection, 11n. Diam.

20 Cement Cone. Traffic Curb and Gutter

21 ICement Cone. Sidewalk 6-lnch Thick
22 Cement Cone. Curb Ramp

23 Landscape Restoration

24 Reservoir Cleaning and Inspection

25 Concrete Joint Sealing

Furnish and Install New Inlet and Outlet Check

Valves

27 Furnish and Install Overflow Piping

28 Furnish and Install Access Ladder

22 Remove Float Guide Cage and Install New
Tension Cable Float Support

30 Minor Change

2013 DWSRF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

HLA Project No.: 12129C

Progress Estimate No.: 8 AND FINAL

Date: December 17,2014

Unit

Ijmgry Unit

Price

Estimate 8

Quantity

Quantity
to Date

LS 1 $57,200.00 0% 100%

LS 1 $9,714.00 0% 100%

LS 1 67,420.00 0% 100%

LS 1 610,300.00 0% 100%

TON 2,800 $11.75 -0.86 2,310.41

TON 600 $13.80 8.12 115.54

LF 6.000 61.10 0

0

5,728

CY 700 $13.50 901

LF 5,700 641.20 20 5,726

LF 290 $47.70 0 233

LF 10 6116.00 0 0

EA 22 61,125.00 0 23

EA 2 $2,040.00 0

0

2

EA 1 $2,772.00 1

LS 1 $4,000.00 0% 100%

LF 140 $143.00 0

0

0

100

EA 13 $3,265,00 13

EA 8 $314.00 8

EA 108 $919.00 0 111

LF 440 $26.25 0

0

0

70

SY 100 $47.25 54

EA 2 61,050.00 2

FA EST. $40,000.00 0.00 45,647.78

LS 1 $8,400.00 0% 100%

LF 500 $6.30 0 504

LS 1 613,300.00 0% 100%

LS 1 $6,035.00 0% 100%

LS 1 $2,180.00 0% 100%

LS 1 $2,740.00 0% 100%

FA EST. $15,000.00 -202.76 15,400.03

SCHEDULE A SUBTOTAL

657,200.00 100%

69,714.00 100%

67,420.00 100%

610,300.00 100%

627,147.32 83%

61,594.45 19%

66,298.60 95%

6235,911.20 100%

611,114.10 80%

60.00 0%

625,875.00 105%

64,080.00 100%

62,772.00 100%

614,300.001 71%

642,445.00 100%

62,512.00 100%

6102,009.00 103%

$1,837.50 16%

$2,551.50 54%

62,

645,6

68,400.00 100%

63,176.20 101%

$13,300.00 100%

66,035.00 100%

$2,180.00 100%

$2,740.00 100%

615,400.03 102.7%

$680,223.18



Item

No. Description Unit

Contract

Quantity
Unit

Price

Estimate 8

Quantity

Quantity
to Date Amount

Contract

Quantity

SCHEDULE B • ROADWAY REPAIR

31 Mobilization LS S13.732.00 0% 100% $13,732.00 100%

32 Projeot Temporary Traffic Controi LS 52,100.00 0% 100% 52,100.00 100%

33 Pianing Bituminous Pavement SY 15,930 S1-35 0 16,119 521,760.65 101%

34 HMA Cl. 1/2" PG 64-28 TON 2,800 S92.00 8.17 2,992.78 5275,335.76 107%

35 Controiied Density Fili CY 25 SI 26.00 3 37 54,662.00 148%

36 Adjust Catch Basin EA 3 S632.00 0 0 50.00 0%

37 Adjust Water Vaive EA 3 S632.00 0 6 53,792.00 200%

38 Adjust Manhole EA 8 S575.00 0 8 54,600.00 100%

39 Minor Change FA EST. S5.000.00 0.00 21,214.95 521.214.95 424.3%

SCHEDULE B SUBTOTAL 5347.197,36

SUBTOTAL, WORK TO DATE 51,027.420.54

PLUS MATERIALS ON HAND 50.00

SUBTOTAL AMOUNTS 51,027,420.54

SCHEDULE A ONLY, 8.2% STATE SALES TAX 555.778.30

TOTAL 51,083.198.84

LESS TOTAL RETAINAGE $51,371.03

LESS AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY PAID 51,030,008.32

AMOUNT NOW DUE 51,819.49

Progress Estimate No. 1 S 388,472.79 Retainage S 19.602.60

Progress Estimate No. 2 S 92.135.81 Retainage $ 4.181.24

Progress Estimate No. 3 S 124,101.92 Retainage $ 6,273.24

Progress Estimate No. 4 S 208,815.51 Retainage S 10,494.22

Progress Estimate No. 5 S 58,582.98 Retainage S 2.629.40

Progress Estimate No. 6 S 141,071.45 Retainage $ 7.251.49

Progress Estimate No. 7 $ 16.827.86 Retainage $ 746.20

Progress Estimate No. 8 AND FINAL $ 1.819.49 Retainage S 192.64

I herebycertify that the foregoing Isa true and correct statement of the work performed under this Contract.

Terry a. «apeteri, PE

ACCEPTED:

I herebyaccept the Final Progress Estimateand FinalContractVoucherCertification, inaccordance with Section 1-09.9of the

WSDOT Standard Specifications.

ion,Scout Cake Construction Date:

G PRCUSCTMM3fr<SPROORe SS g ST *1



NOTARIZED STATEMENT

TO THE

City of Selah

hereby certify that

a) all materials and labor used and performed In the construction of the 2013 DWSRF
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS - Project Number 121290, for the City of Se
lah, have been paid in full and there are no liens or other legal actions pending:

b) Scout Lake Construction, Inc., has complied with the provisions of Section 1-07.19
(Gratuities) of the Standard Specifications; and

c) All industrial insurance premiums, as required under RCW 61.12.050 (Public
Works) and RCW 51.12.070 (work done by contract) have been paid.

by.

/<gj
(Please print or type)Name and Title

Scout Lake Construction. Inc.

Contractor

STATE OF ula.shma-l-0 0 )

COUNTY OF

SIGNED AND

BY

(Signature)

\ cc S * 1^Comb.CuflliM t —
' 1^; mmmt

^WORN TO (OR AFFIRMED) BEFORE ME ON He [L-cVnk)-fer 19. 20 I4

Notary Public Printed Name: v'5u_5 o-vn OQ. S WcxA-^

My Appointment Expires: u,a.V\^ 2.9,

(Please return completed CERTIFICATION form to NLA)

G.\PROJECTSV2012*12129C SE 2013 DWSRF WATER SVS - SCOUT LAKE CONSTVHOGRESS ESTIMATESIFINAL PROG EST NO e«014-11 PROG EST NO 8 FINAL
LTR.rtf



WTAT*

^ Original
Q Revised#

Date:

NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

Contractor's UBI Number: 602 189 549

Department Use OnlyName & Mailing Address of Public Agency
City of Selah
222 Rushmore Road

Selah, WA 98942

UBI Number: 392 000 174

Assigned to:

Date Assigned:

Notice is hereby given relative to the completi 'on ofcontract orproject described below
Contract Number Job Order Contracting

n Yes ISf No
Project Name

2013 DWSRF yVTER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
Description of Work Done/Include Jobsite Address(es)

installation of approx 5,700 LF of new 8-inch ductileironwater main including water services, hydrants, valves,
connections to existing water mains, and other reiated improvements. Work includes surface restoration. 222
Rushmore Road Selah, WA 98942

121290

Contractor's Name

Scout Lake Constructon, Inc.

E-mail Address lAiridavit ID*

christyd@scout-lake.com 1551286
Contractor Address

P.O. Box 1060 Selah, WA 98942

Telephone #
(509)698-0752

If Retalnage Is not withheld, please select one of the following and List Surety's Name & E

• Retainage Bond Q Contract/Payment bond (valid ft
end Number.

>r federallyfundedtransportationprojects)

Name: |Bond Number:
Date Contract Awarded

02/25/14

Date Work Commenced

04/07/14

Date Work Completed
09/12/14

Date Work Accepted

Were Subcontracters used on this project? Ifso, please complete Addendum A. hflYes l_l No
Affidavit ID*- No L&Ireleasewill be granteduntilall affidavits are listed.

Contract Amount

Additions ( + )

Reductions (•)
Sub-Total

Amount ofSales Tax 8-2
(If various rales apply, please send a breakdown)

TOTAL

Comments:

S

s'
$"
$"

$

$!

1,012,187.50

15.233.04

1.027.420.54

55778.3

1.083.198.84'

Liquidated Damages $
Amount Disbursed $ 1,031,827.81

Amount Retained $ 51,371.03

TOTALS 1,083,198.84

NOTE: These two totals must be equai

Sales Tax of 8.2% collected on Schedule A only: $680,223.18.

Note:TheDisbursing Officer must submit thiscompleted notiee immediately afteracceptance of thework done under thiscontract.
NO PAYMENT SHALL BE MADE FROM RETAINED FUNDS until receipt ofall release cenificates.
Submitting Form; Please submit the completed form byemail toalljhree agencies below.

Contact Name: Dale NovobielsKi

Email Address: dnovoblelski@ci.selah.wa.us

Oepartment of Revenuo
Public Wortis Section
(360)704.^650
PWC@dor.wa.gov

o
Waohington Stat@Oepanmfftt of

Labor & Industries
Contract Release
(855)5456163. option 04
ContractRelease@LNI.WA.GOV

REV 31 0020e (4/28/14) F215-038-000 04-2014

Title: Clerk - Treasurer

Phone Number: (509)696-7328

Employment Security
[)epartment
Registration, Inquiry,
Standards & Coordination

Unit
(360)902-9450
publicworfcs@esd.wa.gov



Addendum A: Please List all Subcontractors and Sub-tiers Below

This addendum can be submitted in other formats.

Provide known aflidavii.s at this lime. No L&I release will be eranted until all aflidavits are listed.

Subcontractor's Name: UBI Number: (Required) Affidavid ID*

Granite Construction Company 409 023 062 544646

PR Systems, Inc. 601 303110 517322

Pro Cut Concrete Cutting Yaidma, Inc. 602 212 964 533765

TiafRc Management, Inc. 603 299 562 550605

Withrow Construction, Inc. 601 081 673 534334

Medearis Matthew Pederick (dba Dynamic Metals Consulting) 603186 723 536287

Ground Piercing, Inc. 601 888 979 517356

Ken's Constnjction, Inc. (LowerTier to Granite Constmction Company) 601 612 153 534842

Russell Landscaping, LLC 602 975 687 533964

Columbia Ready Mix, Inc. 600 533 314 539682

GiliConcrete & Masonry Design, LLC 602 703197 543974

For tax assistance or to request this document in an alternate format, please call 1-800-647-7706.Teletype (TTY) users may use the
Washington Relay Service by calling 711.

REV 31 0020e Addendum (04/28/14) F2I5-038-000 04-2014



City of Selah
2013 DWSRF WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

12129C

Scout Lake Construction, Inc.
Contractor's Phone No.: (509)698-0752

PROJECT CLOSING CHECK LIST

*Mr. Dale NovobielskI:

• The City has received the following from Huibregtse,
Louman Associates, Inc.;

o Final Progress Estimate:

0 Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract DOR/L&i/ESD:

o Notarized Statement:

o Confirmation that ail Punch List Items complete:

o Record Drawings:

Labor and equal employment opportunity documents:

o Statement of Intent I Affidavit of Wages paid approved

by the State Department of Labor and industries:

o Certified payrolls for the Contractor and Sub-contractor:

• Council resolution authorizing project acceptance:

o Copv sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hiacivii.com):

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Department of Revenue:

o Received WS Department of Revenue Cert of Payment
Of State Excise Taxes by PW Contractor release:
{Example Copy Attached) y'

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract to

Employment Security Department:

o Received WS Employment Security Dept

Cert of Payment of Contribution.... PW Contract release:
(Example Copy Attached - Form EtViS 8449 760 R3-98) k

• Sent 1 copy of Notice of Completion of Public Works Contract

to Department of Labor and industries:

o Received Dept. of Labor & Industries Cert of Payment
Of Industrial insurance Premiums by PW Contractor release:
(Example Copy Attached) \/

• There are no liens or claims for labor and materials
filed against retainage:

• A full sixty (60) days have elapsed since the official acceptance

of this project by the City Council:

• Released Retainage ($51,371.03):

o Copy sent to HLA (cfitzsimmons@hiacivii.com):

Date Received/Sent:

7?? CffV/zM^Y

7^ CtrY/zM//A
77

G:\PROJECTS\2012\12129CS£ 2013 DWSRFWATER SVS • SCOUTLAKE CONSTIPROGRESS ESTIMATESIFiNAL PROG EST NO812014-11 PROG EST NO8 FINAL LTR.nT



Employment Security Department
'^5? WASHINGTON STAIE

P.O. Box9046Olympia,WA98507-9046!Fax 360-902-9287

CITYOFGRANDVIEW
Attn: ANITA PALACIOS
207 W 2ND ST

GRANDVIEW, WA 98930

CONTRACTOR:

A & B ASPHALT INC

PO BOX 5280

BENTON CITY, WA 99320-5280

) CERTIFICATE OF
) PAYMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS
) PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON
) PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT

ES Reference #: 41888600 6
UBI No: 600192346

prTY OF GRANDVifw

The Employment Security Department hereby certifies those contributions, penalties and interest
due from the above named contractor undertheEmployment Security Acthavebeenpaidin full or
provided forwithrespect to the following public works contract:

Description: EAST WINE COUNTRY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS.

Contract numben 11016C

TheEmployment Security Department hereby certifies thatit hasnoclaim pursuant to RCW
50.24.130 against the public body named above fortaxattributable to service performed forsaid
public body bythe above named contractor onthe above described contract. The Employment
Security Department releases itslien onthe retained percentage which is provided byRCW
60.28.040 for contributions,penalties and interestdue from said contractor.

This certificate does not release said contractor from liabilityfor additional contributions, penalties
andinterest which may belater determined tobeduewith respect to the above mentioned contract.

Dated at Olympia, Washington onApril 12,2012.
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

By

Robyn R. Wells

Authorized Representative

Original - Disbursing Officer
Duplicate - Employer
Triplicate - Central Office Files



WtisliingioiiStale
Dcparuneni ofRevenue
PO Bo* 47474

Olympia. WA 98304-7474

601 672 468

Certificate of Payment of State Excise
Taxes by Public Works Contractor

MRM CONSTRUCTION INC

PO BOX 838

ELLENSBURG WA 98926 0838

CITY OF CLE ELUM

TONI FIELDS, CITY CLERK
119 W FIRST ST

CLE ELUN WA 98903 0008

We hereby certify thai taxes, increases and penalties due or to become ;due from the above-named
contractor under Chapter 180,1-aws of 1935, as amended, with respect to the following public works
contract:

CITY OF CLE ELUM

05038-C STAFFORD AVE t SECOND ST TIB SIDEWALK IMPROVES

>gether with all otiiertaxes, increases and penalties duefrom suchcontractor, have been paid in full or that
uiey are, in the Department's opinion, readily collectible witliout recourse to the stale's lien on the retained
percentage.

This certificate is issued pursuant to the provision of Chapter 60.28 Revised Code of Washington for the
sole purpose of irifbrming the state, county, or municipal officer charged with the duty of disbursing or
authorizing thepayment of publicfimds to saidcoptfactor that theDepartment of Revenue hereby releases
the state's lien on the retained pra-centage provided by this Chapter for excise taxes due from said contractor.

Tliis certlQcale does not release said contractorifrom liability for additional tax that may be later
determined to bodue with fdspect to the above-mentioned contract or other activities.

Dated. _at Olympia, Washington,

State of Washington
Department of.Revenue

Certifying Officer

To inquireabouiilicavailabililyof thisdocument in an ahcniale formal for ihe visually impaired orin a language otherthanEnglish,pleasecall (360)486-2342.
y users may call I-800-43J-7985.

REV 31 0028 (10-01-02) ROUTING: Disbursing Oi^ci, CYintracior, RIe, Special File



0
Itehington state Department of

Labor &Industries Olympia, WA 98504-4274

Certificate of Release of the State's Lien on Public Works Contracts

Awarding agency name

Attn: Disbursing officer name

Awarding agency address

GC dba and address

With this letter, the Washington State Department ofLabor & Industries (L&I) approves ofyour
release or payment of the contract amount retained from the following copfractor —

GC LNI account number

— related to the following public works contract: W

Public works contract name and number -

In our opinion, all workers' compensation insur^ce premiums, increases, and penalties due to
L&I from this contractor have been paid id|uli 6f are readily collectible without recourse to the
state's lien on the retained percentage;!, , X;.

This letter's sole purpose is to communicate our release ofthe state's lien to the public official
responsible for payingor authorizing the paymentofpublicfundsto the contractornamed above.

Ifwe later determine that the contractorowes additionalpremiums related to the above-
mentioned contract or other activities, the contractor is still liable for payment.

Dated at Olympia,Washington.

State of Washington
Department of Labor & Industries

Contract Release Specialist

360-902-xxxx or XXX@Lni.wa.gov

' Title 51 RCW authorizes L&I to collect workers' compensation insurance premiums, increases, and penalties.
Chapter 60.28 RCW establishes L&I's priority regarding the lien.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-3

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal Advertising Contract
with the Yakima Herald-Republic for the 2015 Calendar Year

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From; Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: The rate of $13.80 per column inch for the first insertion and

$13.06 per column inch for each subsequent insertion of a particular
advertisement

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of the 2015 advertising contract with the Yakima Herald-Republic

Background / Findings & Facts:

The Yakima Herald-Republic is the only local daily newspaper in the area at
present. The City is required to publish all Ordinances per RCW 65.16.160, as
well as items like public hearing notices, special meetings, and employment
openings.

The Herald was unable to provide the contract to the City prior to the
December 9, 2014 meeting, and agreed to honor the 2014 contract until the
matter could be voted on at the January 13, 2015 meeting.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to Approve the Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal
Advertising Contract with the Yakima Herald-Republic for the 2015 Calendar
Year

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City
Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date;

12/10/2013

12/11/2012

12/27/2011

Action Taken;

Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal
Advertising Contract with the Yakima Herald-Republic
for the 2014 Calendar Year

Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal

Advertising Contract with the Yakima Herald-Republic
for the 2013 Calendar Year

Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Legal

Advertising Contract with the Yakima Herald-Republic
for the 2012 Calendar Year

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A

LEGAL ADVERTISING CONTRACT WITH THE YAKIMA

HERALD-REPUBLIC FOR THE 2015 CALENDAR YEAR

WHEREAS, the City of Selah must publish certain ordinances, legal notices and other
legal advertising, and

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the services of Yakima Herald-Republic to
provide such publication services, and

WHEREAS, Yakima Herald-Republic desires to provide such services;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SELAH, WASHINGTON to authorize the Mayor to sign a legal advertising contract
with the YakimaHerald-Republic for the 2015 calendar year. The contract is attached
hereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this 13'" day ofJanuary, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Robert Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.



LEGAL ADVERTISING CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, executed this 1st day ofJanuary 2015 by and between the
City of Selah, Washington, hereinafter called the City, and the Yakima Herald-Republic,
hereinafter called the Publisher;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Publisher proposes as follows: at the rate of $13.80 per column
inch for the first insertion and $13.06 per column inch for each subsequent insertion ofa
particular advertisement in solid nonpareil type; the parties agree as follows:

The City does hereby accept the aforesaid bid of the Publisher, and agrees to pay
the Publisher accordingly for the required printing and publishing of City ordinances,
resolutions, legal notices and other legal advertising required by law to be published by
the City commencing on the date hereof and ending on the 31st day ofDecember, 2014.

The name ofthe newspaper in which the City legal advertising is to be printed is
the Yakima Herald-Republic.

Executed the day and year first above written.

CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer John Gawlik, Mayor
City of Selah City ofSelah

Sharon Prill, Publisher
Yakima Herald-Republic



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-4

Title: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Business Licensing Services

Agreement between the City of Selah and the State of Washington Department
of Revenue Business Licensing Services

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: varied depending on the annual revenues collected for business

licenses

Funding Source: local business license holders

Staff Recommendation:

To continue utilizing the State to process business licenses for the City.

Background / Findings & Facts:

In November of 2010 the City signed a five year Interlocal Agreement with the
Dept. of Licensing for business licensing services. The new agreement, which

now falls under the Dept. of Revenue, is a business licensing services
agreement to provide the same services. Using this service allows those who

wish a business license to file online rather than filling out a physical form that
would have to be input by staff.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign a Business
Licensing Services Agreement between the City of Selah and the State of
Washington Department of Revenue Business Licensing Services

Record of all prior actions taken by the Cit}' Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

11/23/2010 Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Sign an Interlocal
Agreement between the City of Selah and the State of
Washington Department of Licensing (DOL)

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A BUSINESS

LICENSING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF SELAH AND

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE BUSINESS

LICENSING SERVICES

WHEREAS, the State of Washington Department of Revenue Business Licensing Services (DOR)
and the City of Selah desire to enter into a Business Licensing Services Agreement for the DOR to
act as the City's agent for business licensing purposes, and to ensure that the City retains its full,
lawful, regulatory and approval authority over all business licensing activities within its jurisdiction,
and

WHEREAS, City of Selah believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of Selah to authorize the
DOR to act on behalf of the City for business licensing purposes, and

WHEREAS, the DOR has submitted a Business Licensing Services Agreement between the City of
Selah and the Department ofRevenue for approval;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON that the Mayor be authorized to sign a Business Licensing Services Agreement
Between the City Of Selah and the Department of Revenue Business Licensing Services for
business licensing activities. A copy of the Business Licensing Services Agreement is attached
hereto.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 13*^ day of January, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bob Noe, City Attomey

RESOLUTION NO.



DOR Conbacl Number K1195

BUSINESS LICENSING SERVICES AGREEMENT

I. Parties and Contact Information

This Business Licensing Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between the parties identified
below:

Mailing
Address

Delivery
Address

Contact

Person:

State of Washington
Department of Revenue
Business Licensing Services

("Revenue")

PO Box 47475

Olympia.WA 98504-7475

6500 Linderson Way SW. Ste 102
Tumwater, WA 98501

Maria Moore

Phone: (360) 705-6601
FAX: (360) 705-6699
E-Mail; mariam@dQr.wa.aQv

City of Selah

("Partner")

115 W Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

115 W Naches Avenue

Selah. WA 98942

Dorraine Bigby
Phone: (509) 698-7326
FAX: (509) 698-7338
E-Mail: dbiobvfSici.selah.wa.us

II. Purpose

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms under which the Business Licensing Services
(BLS) program of the Department of Revenue will act as Partner's agent for the purpose of collecting,
processing, and disbursing information, licenses, and fees related to Partner's licensing or other
regulatory activities, hereafter referred to as Confidential Licensing Information. Partner retains all power
and authority over its business licensing and other regulatory activities except as expressly delegated to
Revenue under this Agreement.

Effective Date

This Agreement is effective as of (check one); Q (mm/dd/yyyy).

the date of the last signature of the parties.

IV. Services Provided bv Revenue

Revenue will perform the services identified in this Section IV using best efforts in a manner
determined by Revenue in good faith to be appropriate considering objectives, costs, and
effectiveness.

• Distribute and process initial and renewal internet and/or paper-based applications for
Partner's business licensing and/or other regulatory activities.

• Collect and process license fees and licensing information received from applicants and
licensees. Disburse collected fees as directed by Partner.

• Issue Business License with Partner's license endorsement as authorized by Partner.

Page 1 of 9



DOR Contract Number K1195

• Provide routine reports on Partner's business iicenses as requested by Partner, which may
include daily lists of new business applications and renewals, fees processed each day, weekly
list of pending accounts, and lists of businesses for which fees have been transferred.

• Maintain electronic or microfilm images of all paper documents and electronic representations of
electronic filings received by Revenue from applicants and provide copies or certified copies as
requested.

• Maintain a database containing infbmiationrecced from applicants and licensees (the BLS
Database).

• Provide technical assistance to establish and configure appropriate BLS Database access euid
secure access for Partner staff.

• Provide initial training to Partner staff in the use of the BLS Database, and ongoing training to
address changes to the BLSdatabase/access protocols or in Partner staff. Trainingwill occur at
Partner's location, over the telephone, or online, as agr^d upon by the parties.

• Effect reasonable modifications in the BLS system, database, process, or fomis to accommodate
Partner's licensing or other regulatory requirements. Revenue will consult with Partner In
evaluating alternatives and determining the most feasible and timely means of achieving Partner
objectives.

• Timely notify Partner ofother modifications to the BLS system, database, process, or forms,
including modifications accommodating other BLS partners.

V. Partner Obligations

• Timely provide Revenue with ail Information requested to implement Partner's participation in the
BLS program.

• Follow all requirements identified by Revenue as necessary for participation in the BLS program.
Including using:

o The Business License Application and other forms and processes established by
Revenue;

o The "Business License" document for proof of licensure under Partner's licensing or
regulatory program.

o The Unified Business Identifier (UBI) number to identify licensees and license accounts in all
communications with Revenue.

• Obtain and maintain at Its own cost, all necessary equipment and on-line services required at
Partner's business location(s) to support Partner's access into and use of the BLS Database.
End-to-end testing willtake place until such time as Revenue is satisfied.

• Ensure Partner Licensing and Information Technology staff are available to respond promptly to
Revenue. Partner staff will be knowledgeable of Partner operations and/or technology and be
able to assist Revenue staff vrith process improvements and/or troubleshooting.

• Provide timely advance notice to Revenue of potential changes to Partner business licensing
requirements, fees or processes.

• Upon request by Revenue, provide statistical data assodated with the BLS Partner Partnership
Agreement such as Full Time Equivalent (FTE) savings, change in number of Partner licensees,
and change in revenue flow.

Page 2 of 9



DOR ContiBCt Number K1185

VI. Compensation

Services identified In this Agreement are provided by Revenue at no charge with the exception of the
following:

• The Partner shall reimburse Revenue for all fees charged by credit card processors and/or
financial institutions upon any funds charged, collected, or refunded by Revenue in processing
applications and/or collecting fees related to Partner's licensing or other regulatory activities. If a
suitable alternative to the credit card processing can be established, eliminating the requirement
of Partner reimbursement for credit card bank fees, this provision can be disregarded upon
Implementation of the suitable altemaSve without amending this Agreement The Partner Is still
accountable for remaining credit card bank fees owed prior to implementation of the suitable
altemative.

• Partner shall reimburse Revenue the costs of developing and producing ad hoc informational
reports. Ad hoc reports will be created only if requested by the Partner and agreed-upon by
Revenue.

• Partner shall reimburse Revenue's expenses for the Implementation of changes to the BLS
process. Ifrequested by the Partner and agreed-upon by Revenue.

• All project coordination costs, including travel-related expenses, shall be absorbed by the
respedlve parties for their own staff.

• The Partner shall reimburse Revenue for Partner's share of mainframe charges from the
Department of Enterprise Services. Partner's share includes per inquiry/entry charge for access
and usage of the BLS system, costs required to transmit Word document reports, and costs
associated with ad hoc reports requested (Ifany).

VII. Bllllno Procedures

Partner will provide and maintain with Revenue its current billingaddresses and the personnel, if any, to
whom Invoices should be directed. Revenue shall submit Invoices to Partner as-needed, but in no event
more frequently than monthly. Partner shall pay all invoices by warrant or account transfer within thirty
(30) calendar days of the Invoice issue date. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, any ciaim
for payment not already made shall be submitted within ninety (90) calendar days after the
expiration/termination date or the end of the fiscal year, whichever Is earlier.

VIII. Confidentialltv and Data Sharing

The parties agree to the confidentiality and data sharing provisions set forth in Exhibit A and incoiporated
herein by this reference.

IX. Term and Termination

This agreement is effective until terminated. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (SO)
calendar days' prior written notice to the other party.

X. Disputes

The parties agree to participate in good foith mediation to resolve any disputes that are not otherwise
resolved by agreement, prior to any action in court or by arbitration. At any time, either party may Initiate
formal mediation by providing written request to the other party setting forth a brief descripticxi of the
dispute and a proposed mediator. Ifthe parties cannot agree upon a mediator within fifteen (15) calendar
days after receipt of the vwitten request for mediation, the parties shall use a mediation service toat
selects the mediator for the parties. Each party shall be responsible for one-half of the mediation fees, if
any, and its own costs and attorneys' fees.

Page 3 of 9



DOR Contract Numlier. K1195

XI. Miscellaneous.

A. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Washington. Any action arising out of this Agreement must be commenced in Thurston County,
Washington.

B. Interpretation. This Agreement shall be interpreted to the extent possible in a manner consistent
with all applicable laws and not strictly for or against either party.

0. No Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce any term in any one or more instance will not be
construed as a waiver or otherwise affect any future right to insist upon strict performance of the
term. No waiver of any term of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and
signed by personnel authorized to bind the party against whom enforcement is sought

D. Assignment and Delegation. Either party may assign any right or interest or delegate any duty or
obligation, arising under this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

E. Severability. Ifany provision of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be given effect to the extent consistent with
applicable law and the fundamental purpose of this Agreement

F. Survival. Terms of this Agreement which by their nature would continue beyond termination will
survive termination of this Agreement for any reason, including without limitation. Sections 3
through 7 in Exhibit A.

6. No third party beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties and their successors
and may not be enforced by any noivparty.

H. Amendments. No amendment to this Agreement is enforceable unless made in writing and
signed by personnel authorized to bind the party against whom enforcement is sought

1. Merger and integration. This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by
the parties. No other understandings, oral or otheiwise, regarding the subject matter of this
Agreement shall be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties.

J. Changes in law. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to change in a manner that is
consistent vritii any changes to any directly applicable statutory authority, provided that the
change is consistent with the manifest intent of this Agreement and does not conflict with any of
its express provisions. Any such change to this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date
of the change in authority.

Page 4 of 9



DOR Contract Numbar K1185

IN \MTNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement Is executed effective as of the date specified above.

State of Washington
Department of Revenue
Business Licensing Services

Template approved as to form

O" Pile

Date

Keily Owtngs,
Assistant Attomey General for Washington State

City of Seiah

Approved as to form

Page 5 of 9

Date

Date



EXHIBIT A

CONFIDENTIALITY AND DATA SHARING

DOR Conlract Nundier K1195

1. Purpose and Scope

The following provisions establish the terms under which Revenue and Partner will share all data,
including Confidential Licensing Information, pursuant to the BLSAgency Partnership Agreement (the
"Agreemenf).

2. Definitions

"ConfidentialLicensing information" has the same meaning as "Licensing Information" under ROW
19.02.115(1 )(b) and includes, but is not limited to, any information included in the business license
applications, renewal applications, and business licenses under the Business Licensing Service program.
Confidential Licensing Information is classified as at least Category 3 data under Washington's Standard
for Securing Information Technology Assets, OCiO Standard No. 141.10.

3. Confidentiality

Partner and Revenue each agree to keep confidential and secure from unauthorized use, access, or
disclosure, all Contidential Licensing Information received under the Agreement.

A. Ensuring Security: Partner and Revenue shall each establish and implement physical, electronic,
and managerial policies, procedures, and safeguards to ensure that all Confidential Licensing
Information received by it under this Agreement is secure from unauthorized use, access, or
disclosure.

B. Proof of Security. Revenue reserves the right to monitor, audit, or investigate Partner's security
policies, procedures, and safeguards for Confidential Licensing Information. Partner agrees to
provide information or proof of its security policies, procedures, and safeguards as reasonably
requested by Revenue.

4. Statutory Prohibition Against Disclosure: Secrecy Affidavit.

A. Criminal Sanctions. RCW 19.02.115 prohibits the disclosure of Confidential Licensing
Information, except as expressly authorized by RCW 19.02.115. It is a misdemeanor for any
person acquiring Confidential Licensing Information under this Agreement to disclose such
infomiation in violation of the disclosure limitations stated in RCW 19.02.115. Additionally, if the
person is a state officer or employee, the person must forfeit such office or employment and is
incapable of holding any public office or employment in Washington for a period of two years
thereafter.

B. Partner will require employees with access to Confidential Licensing Information to sign a copy of
the secrecy affidavit attached at Exhibit B.

5. Authorized Use. Access, and Disclosure

A. Permitted Uses: Confidential Licensing Information may be used for ofticial purposes only.

B. Permitted Access: Confidential Licensing Information may be accessed only by Partner's
employees and agents that have a bona fide need to access such information in carrying out
their official duties.

C. Permitted Disclosure: Confidential Licensing Information received under the Agreement must
not be disclosed to non-parties unless the disclosure is:

• permitted under an express disclosure exception in RCW 19.02.115;

• ordered under any judicial or administrative proceeding: or

Page 6 of 9



DOR Contract Nuri^ K11»5

• Otherwise expressly authorized by Revenue in writing.

D. Public Records Requests: In the event that Partner reasonably believes that it must
disclose information pursuant to a Public Records Request, and Partner is prohibited from
disclosing such information under the terms of this Agreement, Partner must give notice to
Revenue of its intention to disclose. The notice shall be provided at least 14 business days in
advance of disclosure, the notice shall contain a copy of the public records request, and the
notice shall reasonably identify the information that Partner believes is prohibited from
disclosure under this Agreement.

6. Breach of Confidentialitv

In the event of any use, access, or disclosure of Confidential Licensing Information by Partner or its
employees or agents in material violation of the confidentiality terms of this Agreement:

A. Partner shall notify Revenue in writing as soon as practicable, but no later than three working
days, after determining that a violation has occurred.

B. Revenue may immediately terminate this Agreement and require the certified letum or
destruction of all records containing Confidential Licensing Information; however. Revenue shall
provide Partner with an electronic record containing all information collected for Partner's
licensing or other regulatory activities in an electronic medium.

7. Ownership and Retention of Records

Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, Partner may retain possession of all such
records in accordance with Chapter 40.14 RCW and applicable local government retention schedules as
approved by the Office of the Secretary of State.

8. DataSecuritv

All data provided by Revenue shall be stored on a secure environment with access limited to the least
number of staff needed to complete the purpose of this Agreement.

a. Protection of Data

Partner agrees to store data on one or more of the following media and protect the data as
described:

1) Workstation Hard disk drives. Data stored on local workstation hard disks. Access to the data
will be restricted to authorized users by requiring logon to the local workstation using a
unique user ID and complex password or other authentication mechanisms which provide
equal or greater security, such as biometrics or smart cards. If the workstation is located In an
unsecured physical location the hard drive must be encrypted to protect Revenue data In the
event the device is stolen.

2) Network server disks. Data stored on hard disks mounted on network servers and made
available through shared folders. Access to the data will be restricted to authorized users
through the use of access control lists which willgrant access only after the authorized user
has authenticated to the network using a unique user ID and complex password or other
authentication mechanisms which provide equal or greater security, such as biometrics or
smart cards. Data on disks mounted to such servers must be located in an area which is
accessible only to authorized personnel, with access controlled through use of a key, card

Page 7 of 9



DOR Contract Numtier K1195

key, combination lock, or comparable mechanism. Backup copies for disaster recovery
purposes must be encrypted if recorded to removable media.

3} Optical discs (e.g. CDs, DVDs, Blu-Rays) In local workstation optical disc drives. Data
provided by Revenue on optical discs which will be used in local workstation optical disc
drives and which willnot be transported out of a secure area. When not in use for the
Agreement purpose, such discs must be locked in a drawer, cabinet or other container to
which only authorized users have the key, combination or mechanism required to access the
contents of the container. Workstations which access Revenue data on optical discs must be
located in an area which is accessible only to authorized individuals, with access controlled
through use of a key, card key, combination lock, or comparable mechanism.

4) Data storage on portable devices or media.

a) Confidential Licensing Information may be stored by Partner on portable devices or
media provided the data shall be given the following protections:

i. Encrypt the data with a key length of at least 128 bits

ii. Control access to devices with a unique user ID and password or stronger
authentication method such as a physical token or biometrics.

Hi. Manually lock devices whenever they are left unattended and set devices to lock
automatically after a period of Inactivity, if this feature is available. Maximum
period of inactivity is 20 minutes.

Iv. Physically protect the portable device(s} and/or media by:

• Keeping them in locked storage when not in use;

• Using check-ln/check-out procedures when they are shared; and

• Taking frequent inventories.

b) When being transported outside of a secure area, portable devices and media with
Confidential Licensing Information must be under the physical control of Partner staff with
authorization to access the data.

c) Portable devices include, but are not limited to; handhelds/PDAs, Ultramobile PCs, flash
memory devices (e.g. USB flash drives, personal media players), portable hard disks,
and laptop/notebook computers.

d) Portable media includes, but is not limited to; optical media (e.g. CDs, DVDs, Blu-Rays),
magnetic media (e.g. floppy disks, tape. Zip or Jaz disks), or flash media (e.g.
CompactFlash, SD, MMC).

5) Confidential Licensing Information received from Revenue will be encrypted using National
Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) approved cryptographic algorithms or modules
when transmitted over the Intemet, including information attached to or within email.

b. Safeguards Against Unauthorized Access and Rendisclosure

Partner shall exercise due care to protect all Confidential Licensing Information from unauthorized
physical and electronic access. Partner shall establish and implement the following minimum
physical, electronic and managerial safeguards for maintaining the confidentiality of information
provided by either party pursuant to this Agreement:

Page 8 of 9



DOR Contract Number K1ig5

1) Partner will store the information in an area that is safe from access by unauthorized persons
when not in use.

2) Partner shall take precautions to ensure that only authorized personnel and agents are given
access to on-line files containing confidential or sensitive data.

3) Partner shall instruct all individuals with access to the Confidential Licensing Information
regarding the confidential nature of the information, the requirements of Use of Data and
Safeguards Against Unauthorized Access and Re-Disclosure clauses of this Agreement, and
the sanctions specified in federal and state laws against unauthorized disclosure of
information covered by this Agreement.

•end*

Page 9 of 9



IDepartment of
Exhibit B

RevenueWasivngton Stote jgj^ LIcense Confidentiality Affidavit

This form must be completed and signedby every individuai (including mayor, councilmember, treasurer, city manager, etc.)
with access to confidential tax or licensing information.

An individual who discloses confidential information to an unauthorized person is guilty ofa misdemeanor. See RCW
82.32.330(6) and 19.02.115(5)

Acknowledgement of Confidentiality

I employed by
(PrimTumie)

swear or affirm that I have read and imderstand the requirements regarding the protection of tax and/or licensing
information provided by the Department as stated in RCW 82.32.330 and 19.02.11.'i. I further understand that this
information is privileged and confidential, and tlievefore shall not be disclosed to any person not entitled to knowledge
of such informatioo. I understand that my use or disclosure ofconfidential tax information may be ftirtiiev restricted by
an information-sharing agreement.

Dated:

(Signature)

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me this day of

Notary in and for the State of_

Residing at

My commission expires

(Signature ofNotary Public)

Authorizatioii - Authorization is given by someone other than the person being given access to information.

I of
(Ptintnameand liile) (Ptinijwisdiaion)

authorize who has a business need to access fire following
(Frinl name end tide)

fiom the Washington State Department of Revenue (check all that apply):
n Licensing Information (available toBLS partners only) O Tax Information

(Signaiur^

REV 27 0056e (3-7-14)



Taxpayer andlicensing information reported to theDepartment ofRevenue (Department) is conGdential andonly
authorized individuals with a business need may view these records. In addition, the information may only be
shared with individuals in yourjurisdictionwho have a signedConGdentiality AfGdavit on Gle with the
Department.

Licensing Information RCW 19.02.115
htlo://<mDs.leg.wa.gov/RCW/dcfaiilt.aspx?cile~lt>.02.115
Licensing information that is collected and maintained through the BusinessLicensing Service (BLS) is
confidential andmaynot be disclosed by anyperson unless and to the extent expressly authorized by statute, local
law, or administrative mle.

Licensing information is defmed imder RCW 19.02.115(l)(b) and includes, without limitation, all information
included in any initial and renewal business license applications and business licenses under the BLS program.

Tax Information RCW 82.32.330

http://;n)i)s.ic&.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx9cile~82.32.330
Tax information is information reported to the Department by a taxpayer, any Dqiartment actions with a taxpayer,
or other data received by, recorded by, prepared by, furnished to, or collected by the Department with respect to
any actions with the taxpayer. Tax information includes the taxpayer's identity, nature, source, or amount of the
taxpayer's income, payments, credits, or tax payments. The following taxes are coveredby this statute including
but not limited to;

• Business & Occupation Tax
• Sales/Use Tax

• Lodging taxes
• PubUc UtiGty Tax
• Brokered Natural Gas (BNG)
• E-911 taxes

• Real Estate Excise Tax (REET^
• Leasehold Excise Tax

Data Security
Keep all data secure regardless of medium.

v' Print only information you need
^ Do not leave docmnents on printers
v' Copy or download electronic data only as needed and save where only authorized personscan access

Communication of conGdential information via email, including attachments, is prohibited

Determining Whether Information is Confidential
Pages 3 and 5 ofthis fonn include examples demonstrating what is confidential, when information may be
disclosed, and to whom it may be disclosed.

Disciosure Penalty
Any person acquiring knowledge of any licensing or tax information as provided under RCW 19.02.115 or
82.32.330 who discloses any such licensing or tax mformation to another person not entitled to knowledge of such
infoimatiou under the provisions of these statutes is guilty ofa misdemeanor.

Questions
If you have questions, visit our website at dcr.wa.gov and search for "public records" or contact the Department's
Public Records Officer Designee at (360) 705-6647 or DORPublicRecords@dor.wa.gov.

REV 27 0056e (3-7-14)



What typesof tax or licensing information received fi'om the Department are confidential?

This table provides exanq)les ofwhen iufoimation your jurisdiction receives from the Dqiartment may ormay not
be shared with others.

Scenario
Confidential Iiribrmation

Yes or No?
"Acceiss": "

1. The Mayor asks if
ABC Painting is
repoiting sales tax to
your city.

Yes, detailed information
about a business's tax

reporting is confidentiai.
Even though the mayor
didn't ask for actual dollar
amounts, disclosing
whether the business has

reported or not is
considered a disclosure.

Ifthe Mayor has a business
need and submitteda signed
ConfidentiaUty Affidavit to
the Department, the
information may be shared.

2. A councilmember asks

how much tax Jim's

Plumbing has reported
to your jurisdiction.

Yes, detailed information
regarding a business's tax
reporting is confidential.

Ifthe councilmember has a

business need and submitted
a signed Confidentiality
Affidavitto the Department,
the infonnation may be
shared.

3. An enq)loyee of the
fire department wants
to know ifJoe's

Automotive indicated
on their business

license that they would
be storing flammable
or toxic materials.

Yes, the information
contained on the business

application, including the
city addendum, is
confidential.

If the employee of the fire
department has a business
need and submitted a signed
ConfidentialityAffidavit to
the Department, the
information may be shared.

4. The county's monthly
local tax distribution

amount is higher than
normal due to

reporting ofone
taxpayer. At a council
meeting, the difference
is discussed but no
taxpayer name is
disclosed.

No, talking about the
distribution amounts as a
whole and even stating
that it is due to one

taxpayer's reporting is
allowed as long as the
taxpayer's name and the
amount the taxpayer
reported is not disclosed.

The taxpayer's business
activity (i.e. hotel) cannot
be disclosed if there are

less than three businesses

with that activity in the
jurisdiction.

General public, city/county
staff, media

REV 27 0056e (3-7-14)



# Scenario
Confldcntial Information

Yes or No?
Access

5. The Treasui'er asks

whether a business is

registered and if so
what is their address?

No, any information
contained in the on-line

Business Reaislratiou

Lookun is considered

public iufonnation.
rhttn-.//dor.wa.Bov/coiiteut/floui
ebusiuess/refiistenuvbusiiiess/br

Information contained in

the Department's on-line
Business License Lookun

is also considered public
information.

ftittn://bts.doi.wa.eov/LiceQseS

General public, city/county
staff, media

earcli/I

6. Another jurisdiction
contacts you to see if
ABC Painting has
reported sales tax to
your jmisdiction.

Yes, the information we
send one jurisdiction may
not be shared with another.

The Deparfinent provides
each jurisdiction the
information tliey are entitled
to receive based on how the

taxpayer has reported on their
Combined Excise Tax

Return.

The jmisdiction requesting
the infonnation should

contact the Department to
investigate tlie taxpayer's
local lax coding.

1. A reporter contacts
you to confirm the
amount of tax reported
by a taxpayer to your
jurisdiction. The
reporter got the figure
fi-om the business.

Yes. Even though the reporter got
the amount from the taxpayer,
any confinnation by a local
jurisdiction is considered a
release ofconfidential

information.

REV 27 0056e (3-7-14)



#

8.

Scenario

A Finance Diiector

prepares a report for a
council meeting
showing the sales tax
distributions by
NAICS code.

Confldentia] Infoimation

Yes or No?

Depends on the number of
taxpayers;
Yes

As a policy, DOR does not
disclose infonnation when

there are less than three

taxpayers in a NAICS
code. If there are less than

three, the public or the
taxpayers involved may be
able to determine the

income reported by the
taxpayers.

No

If there are three or more

taxpayers, there is no risk
ofdisclosure.

Access

If less than three - only the
jurisdiction's employees or
authorized individuals

(mayor, councilperson, etc.)
with a business need and a

signed Confidentiality
Affidavit on file may view
the information.

Three or more - general
public, city/county staff,
media.

NOTE: a local jurisdiction may release taxpayer information if you provide the Department a Confidential Tax
Infonnation Authorization form nit(u://dor.wa.gov/Docs/forms/Misc/27-0055e.pdf) signed by the taxpayer.

To iuquiie about this form iu an alternate format, please call 1-800-647-7706. Teletype (TTY) users may use theWashington Relay
Service by calling 711.

REV 27 0056e (3-7-14)



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-5

Title: Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services

Agreement with Durant Development Services, Inc. for professional planning
services

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $2,520 per month, up to 42 hours. Any hours beyond 42 hours
in a month will be billed at $60.00 per hour. Additionally, the City will provide
an insurance endorsement for General Liability and/or Wrongful Acts. The
Premium charge would be approximately $250 for one line item or $500 for
both lines.

Funding Source: Fund 001

Staff Recommendation:

Approval of the agreement with Durant Development Services

Background / Findings «& Facts:

At the 2014 retreat Council discussed the retirement of Community Planner
Davison and the need to fill the position. The attached contract was prepared by
Bob Noe, and the attached information regarding an insurance endorsement
was provided by CIAW, the City's insurance provider.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to approve the Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional
Services Agreement with Durant Development Services, Inc. for professional
planning services

Record of ail prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date:

9/4/2014

Action Taken:

Council Retreat. Discussion on Community Planner

position.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text,



CITYOFSELAH, WASHINGTON
RESOLUTIONNO.

A RESOLUTION authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement
with Durant Development Services, Inc. for professional plarming services.

WHEREAS, the City of Selah has a need for a professional planner to perform planning
services;

WHEREAS, Durant Development Services, Inc. has been providing said service on an
as-needed basis imder the direction of the Public Works Director;

WHEREAS, the City and Durant Development Services, Inc. have agreed to a
Professional Services Agreement for the provision of professional planning services;

WHEREAS, the City of Selah desires to enter into a Professional Services Agreement
with Durant Development Services, Inc. for professional planning services;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES as follows;

The Mayor is authorized to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Durant
Development Services, Inc. for professional planning services for the City of Selah.

PASSED this 13"' day ofJanuary ,2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer Robert F. Noe, City Attorney



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT isentered into this IS* day ofJanuary, 2015 by and between the City of Selah, a Municipal
Corporation 115 W. Naches Avenue, Selah, Washington 98942 referred to herein as "City" and "Consultant" more
specified as Durant Development Services, Inc., a Washington Corporation, 513 N. Front Street, Suite Q, Yakima,
Washington 98901.

In consideration of the terms and conditions contained, the parties hereto agree as follows;

1. "Consultant" agrees to perform professional planning services for "City" to include attendance at Planning
Commission, Hearing Examiner and City Council meetings, the review ofapplications for proposed
developments including land use permits, subdivisions, site plans, rezones, annexations, site visits in
connection with the review ofdevelopment proposals, the preparation ofstudies and analyses with respect
to the City's land development controls, long range planning services as may be required in connection
with the Comprehensive Plan, advising the public on land use and zoning procedures and requirements and
other services commonly performed by City plarming professionals.

2. "City" shall have the following responsibilities under this agreement:

a. The provision ofall available data, reports, records and maps to which the "City" has access and
which are needed by the "Consultant" for the performance ofthe services provided for herein,

b. Providing assistance and cooperation for the "Consultant" in obtaining any other needed material
which "City" does not have access to.

c. Providing support staff services, office space, voice mail and email as needed by the "Consultant"
for the performance of the services provided for herein.

3. "Consultant" shall commence work on February 9,2015, unless delayed by circumstances out of
Consultant's control such as, but not limited to, illness, adverse weather or transportation system failures.

4. "Consultant" agrees to perform all services provided for herein for a fee ofS2,520 per month, based on a
minimum of42 hours per month. Any work performed by the "Consultant" beyond 42 hours to be billed at
$60.00 per hour. Except that for the month ofFebruary 2015, the minimum monthly fee shall be prorated
to account for the actual commencement date.

5. Any reimbursable expenses incurred by the "Consultant", including but not limited to, reproduction costs,
recording costs shall be charged to the "City" at cost as verified by receipts. It is understood that expenses
are to be kept at a minimum commensurate with the proper completion of the services provided for under
this agreement and with the understanding that most such services will be provided for by the "City."
Mileage shall be charged at the current rate established by the Internal Revenue Service for itemizing
deductions on individual tax returns. Provided, however, that "Consultant" will waive all mileage expense
for travel within the City of Selah, the Selah Urban Growth Area and between Yakima and Selah and
further provided that any billable travel charges shall be pre-approved by the "City".

6. This agreement contains all terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No change or addition to this
agreement shall be valid or binding upon either party unless such change or addition is in writing and
executed by both parties.



7. The parties agree that for the purposesof this Agreement, the "Consultant" is an independentcontractor
and neither "Consultant" nor any employee of"Consultant" is an employee of"City". Neither "Consultant"
nor any employee of"Consultant" is entitled to any benefits that "City" provides its employees.

8. The "Consultant" shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the contracted activities without obtaining
prior written approval from "City".

9. Either party may terminate this contract upon thirty (30) days written notice sent by certified mail to the
address listed above.

10. Each party shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its officers, agents and employees, from all
liability, loss or damage, including costs ofdefense they may suffer as a result ofclaims, demands, actions,
damages, costs or judgments which result from the actions performed by the indemnifying party, its agents,
employees, or subcontractors pursuant to this Agreement.

11. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Any action, suit or Judicial
proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement shall be brought in the Superior Court for the State of
Washington in Yakima County, Washington.

12. The terms ofthis Agreement shall be from the date ofexecution to December 31,201S and may be
extended by the mutual written consent of the parties.

Dated this 13"* day ofJanuary, 2015

CONSULTANT

Durant Development Services, Inc.

Thomas R. Durant, President

City ofSelah

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST;

Dale Novobielski, Clerk/Treasurer



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 M-6

Title; Resolution declaring approximately 4,500 feet of 2 V2" fire hose, 12 "D"

size steel oxygen cylinders, and miscellaneous office equipment as surplus.

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Gary Hanna Fire Chief

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: None

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Approve

Background / Findings t& Facts:

The fire department received a grant in 2014 from the federal government to
replace all of our aging 2 V" fire hose. The grant stipulates that the old hose be
surplused.

The oxygen cylinders have been replaced with aluminum a few at a time over
the past 15 years and are no longer needed.

The miscellaneous office equipment is made up of non serviceable printers, fax
machines and out dated TV's.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Recommended Motion:

Move to approve the surplus of approximately 4,500 feet of 2 '/4" fire hose, 12
"D" size steel oxygen cylinders, and miscellaneous office equipment.

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date: Action Taken:

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date, Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



RESOLUTION NO

RESOLUTION DECLARING FIRE DEPARTMENT PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND

AUTHERIZING IT'S DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, the Selah Fire Department has re-evaluated potential uses for equipment owned by
the Fire Department; and,

WHEREAS, the equipment identified as follows:

Approximately 4,500 feet of 2 14" fire hose

12 "D" size steel oxygen cylinders

MISCELLANEOUS OFFICE EQUIPMENT

Appears to have no further purposes for the City ofSelah Fire Department, but equipment would
have usable years in public or private sector;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
SELAH, WASHINGTON, that the identified equipment be surplused and its disposal authorized.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON, this day of January, 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Robert Noe, City Attorney

RESOLUTION NO.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 N-1

Title: Ordinance Amending the 2015 Budget for Demolition of Structures on
110, 112 & 202 Park Avenue and 105 Selah Avenue.

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Dale Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: $ 25,000

Funding Source: Fund 119 Transit

Staff Recommendation:

Approve Ordinance.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The City desires to remove structures from 110, 112 & 202 Park Avenues and

105 Selah Avenue for the development of a Transit Park n Ride.

Recommended Motion:

I move to approve the Ordinance amending the 2015 budget for the demolition
of structures on the properties shown above.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2015 BUDGET FOR THE DEMOLITION OF

STRUCTURES ON 110, 112 & 202 PARK AVENUE AND 105 SELAH AVENUE

WHEREAS, the City desires to approve an adjustment to the 2015 Budget;

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON, does
ordain as follows: that the Clerk-Treasurer be authorized to amend the 2015 Budget as follows:

119 Transit

119.000.094.594.47.61.00 Land Improvements $ 25,000

119.000.999.508.80.00.00 New Ending Unreserved Fund Balance $ 559,070

PASSED AND ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,
WASHINGTON this 13*^ day ofJanuary, 2015.

John J. Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale E. Novobielski, Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM;

Robert Noe, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Action Item

1/13/2015 N-2

Title: Ordinance Amending Sections of Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A,
Chapter 10.28.040, Regulatory Notes, and Chapter 10.12.040 of the Selah
Municipal Code

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Dennis Davison, Community Planner

Action Requested: Approval

Board/Commission Recommendation: Approval

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt Amended Title 10, Chapter 10.28 Table A-5, Chapter 10.28.040
Regulatory Notes, and Chapter 10.12.040.

Background / Findings & Facts:

The initial adoption of Title 10, Chapter 10.28, in 2004, did not provide any
reference in Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or in Chapter 10.28.040
Regulatory Notes to the provisions of Chapter 10.12.040, which would permit
duplexes on specifically designated lots zoned One Family Residential (R-1)
within new subdivisions.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Mr. Torkelson submitted a proposed plat entitled 'Eagle Ridge Phases 2, 3 and

4', desiring to utilize the provision of Chapter 10.12.040 to create 3 lots
specifically designated for duplex structures.

At the hearing the Examiner found there was no connectivity between Chapter
10.12.040 and Chapter 10.28, Table 5~A or Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory
Notes referencing the provisions of Chapter 10.12.040. Thus he denied the
inclusion of specifically designated duplex lots within the proposed
subdivision.

The original purpose of Chapter 10.12.040 was to create a diversity of housing
structures and promote affordable housing within the One Family Residential
(R-1) zone.

The Commission finds that with continued population growth there is a need to

provide for greater zoning flexibility when developing property. Said text

amendments are in furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare
of the people within the City of Selah.

Recommended Motion:

I move we adopt the proposed amendments to the Selah Municipal Code and

adopt the Commission's Findings as our own



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Record of all prior actions taken by the City Council and/or a City Board, City

Committee, Planning Commission, or the Hearing Examiner (where applicable)

Date:

9/30/2014

10/14/2014

11/4/2014

1/13/2015

Action Taken;

Planning Commission Conducted Public Hearing on
Proposed Text Amendments and Adopted
Recommendation of Approval.

City Council considers proposed Text Amendments as a
Council agenda item and REJECTS Planning Commission
Recommendation of Approval.

Planning Commission Conducts Public Hearing on
Proposed Text Amendments to Title 10, Chapter 10.28,
Table 5-A, Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes, and
Chapter 10.12.040 One Family Residential Zoning
District (R-I) and Adopts Recommendation of Approval

City Council considers proposed Text Amendments as a
Council agenda item

Ciick here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.

Click here to enter a date. Click here to enter text.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF TITLE 10,
CHAPTER 10.28, TABLE 5-A, CHAPTER 10.28.040,

REGULATORY NOTES, AND CHAPTER 10.12.040 OF THE
SELAH MUNICIPAL CODE

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend existing zoning regulations codified in Selah
Municipal Code, Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A, Chapter 10.28.040, Regulatory Notes, and
Chapter 10.12.040; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the existing zoning regulations to implement the
provisions of Selah Municipal Code, Title 10, Chapter 10.12.040; and,

WHEREAS, the proposed text amendments to Selah Municipal Code, Title 10 were reviewed
and recommended for adoption by the Planning Commission afier the Commission held an open
record public hearing on November 4,2014; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Selah at an open record public meeting held on
January 13,2015 considered the Planning Commission recommendation, exhibits and the
recommendations ofstaff on the proposed amendments; now, therefore,

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH, WASHINGTON,
THAT THERE ARE HEREIN ADOPTED AMENDMENTS TO THE SELAH MUNICIPAL

CODE, TO BE CODIFIED AS TITLE 10, CHAPTER 10.28, TABLE 5-A, TITLE 10,
CHAPTER 10.28.040(1) REGULATORY NOTES, AND TO CHAPTER 10.12.040 TO READ
AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. There is herein enacted an amendment to Selah Municipal Code, to be codified
as Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A to read as follows:

CHAPTER 10.28

PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES
TABLE A-5

See Chapter 10.06.020 for an explanation of Use Categories

Page 1 of 4



CITY OF SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 28, TABLE A-5

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING

DISTRICT

LDSF R-l R-2 R-3 B-I B-2 M-1

MINING / REFINING / OFF-

SITE HAZARDOUS

WASTE TREATMENT

Asphalt, roofing matcriai manufacture, rocli crushing 3

Mining*, including sand and gravel pits 3

Off site hazardous waste treatment and storage raeillties* 3 3

RESIDENTIAL

Accessory structure, use or building* 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Detached single family dwelling* 1 1 1

Manufactured home'/Mobile home* (.Sec 10.08.140) 1

Two family dwelling (duplex) * (See 10.28.04tl|l|) 1(1) 1 I

Multiple family dwelling*: 0-5 DUA

<6-l2DUA

> 12 DUA

2

2

1

1

1

Manufactured home parks* (See I0,28.040[e)) 3

Retirement apartments 2 1

Home occupations* (See I0.28.040[o])

Minor Home Occupations* (See 10.28.040|o]) 1 1

Major Home Occupations* (See 10.28.040|o)) 2 2 2 2 2

Section 2. There is herein enacted an amendment to Selah Municipal Code, to be codified
as Title 10, Chapter 10.28.040(1) to read as follows:

(1) Duplexes are only perniilicd in the One Family Zoning District (R-1) on lots thai have
been designated as Two Family Residential lots per S.M.C. Chapter 10.12.040. Careful
consideration of adjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring harmonious
compatibility.

Page 3 of 4



Section 3. There is herein enacted an amendment to Selah Municipal Code, to be codified
as Title 10, Chapter 10.12.040 to read as follows:

IQ.12.040 Designated two family residential lots. Within a proposed land division of
ten (10) or more lots ten (10) percent of the lots may be designated for a future two family
dwelling. The proposed lot(s) shall be considered by the reviewing body and, once the lot
location(s) are approved, the lot(s) shall be clearly identified on the recorded subdivision
providing public disclosure of said approval.

Careful consideration of adjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made
ensuring harmonious compaiibi!it\.

The minimum lot size requirement of any lot(s) designated for a future two family
dwelling shall be a minimum of 9,000 sq. ft. or such minimum lot size based on slope specified
in Section 10.12.030.

Section 4. Severability. These amendments are declared severable. If any section,
paragraph, clause or other portion is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any
court of competentjurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions
of this ordinance. If any section, paragraph, clause or any portion is adjudged invalid for any reason
as applied to any particular person, circumstance, property, use, or structure the application of such
portion of this title to another particular person, circumstance, property, use, or structure shall not
be affected.

Section 5. This Ordinance amending Selah Municipal Code, Title 10, Chapter 10.28,
Table A-5 , Title 10, Chapter 10.28.040(1) and Title 10, Chapter 10.12.040 shall become
effective at 12:01 a.m. on the 20"* day ofJanuary, 2015.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SELAH,

WASHINGTON THIS 13TH DAY OF JANUARY. 2015.

John Gawlik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dale Novobielski, City Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bob Noe, City Attorney

Page 4 of 4



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

1/13/2015 P-4a

Title: Parks Board Minutes - November 3, 2014

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Monica Lake, Executive Assistant

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

N/A

Background / Findings & Facts:

N/A

Recommended Motion:

N/A



Regular Meeting
Selah Council Chambers

115 West Naches Avenue

Selah, WA 98942

City of Selah
Parks & Recreation Board Minutes

November 3,2014

A. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Baranowski called the meeting to order at 4:00pm.

B. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Board Members Baranowski, Callahan, Neumeyer, Creach, Stokes, Smith,
Pendleton

Members Absent: Board Member Schmid

Staff Present: Ty Jones, Public Works Utility Supervisor; Recreation Manager Brown;
Caprise Groo, Public Works Department Assistant

Guests:

C. REVIEW OF MINUTES FROM THE MAY 5,2014 MEETING

Board Member Cailahan moved, and Board Member Creach seconded, approval of the May
5,2014 minutes as written. By voice vote, support was unanimous.

D. COMMUNICATIONS NONE

E. GENERAL BUSINESS

1. Sunrise Park Status

Brief discussion regarding the tables put in, and whether the park might eventually go to the Selah
School District.

2. Status ofNew Pool Efforts

Recreation Manager Brown said that efforts on the pool have been put on the back burner.
Discussion followed on the replacement of the liner and the need to have someone take the
initiative to make the new pool happen.

3. Status ofany grant writing efforts (Volunteer Park, Civic Center)



Recreation Manager Brown gave a brief update, noting that they need to solicit outside
contributions for Volunteer Park to meet the City's percentage of funds needed.

Public Works Utility Supervisor Jones described the work already done, including the installation
of irrigation and removal of trees.

Discussion followed on items such as where the best location for parking would be, playground
equipment that could be utilized by special needs children, and those people who are not happy
about the park being improved.

F. OLD BUSINESS

1. Centennial Park update

Board Member Stokes spoke briefly on the project, noting that Huibregtse, Louman Associates,
Inc. staked out the area. A briefdiscussion followed on what they would like to see at the park,
such as fencing and a walking path.

G. NEW BUSINESS

1. Open Public Meeting Act training

The Board Members read through the information provided in their packets and watched the video
training provided by the Washington State Attorney General's Office regarding Open Public
Meetings.

H. PARK BOARD MEMBER REPORTS

Chairman Baranowski opened the table for discussion on the fi'equency of the Board meetings and
the need for Board Members to stay apprised ofactivities pertaining to the City's parks. A brief
discussion followed.

ADJOURNMENT:

Board Member Callahan moved, and Board Member Creach seconded, that the meeting be
adjourned. By voice vote, the motion passed unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:05pm.



CITY OF SELAH

CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEMSUMMARY

Council Meeting Informational Item

1/13/2015 P-4b

Title: Planning Commission Minutes- November 4, 2014

Thru: Joe Henne, Interim City Administrator

From: Caprise Groo, Public Works Department Assistant

Action Requested: Informational - No action

Board/Commission Recommendation: Not applicable

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Funding Source: N/A

Staff Recommendation:

Information Only

Background / Findings & Facts:

Information Only

Recommended Motion:

Information only



City ofSelah
Planning Commission Minutes

of

November 4, 2014

Selah Council Chambers

115 W. Naches Ave.

Selah, Washington 98942

A. Call to Order

The meetingwas called to order by Chairman Quinnell at 5:29 p.m.

B. Roll Call:

Members Present: Commissioners: Miller, Torkelson, Smith, Quinnell, and Pendleton.
Members Absent:

Staff Present: Dennis Davison, Community Planner; Caprise Groo, Secretary
Guests:

Mr. Davison addressed the audience about the issues before the Planning Commission. The fust item: Correct 2 lines of text on page
8 of theJune2014minutes. The second item: Selah Municipal Code, Title 10 Chapter 10.28 text amendment. Heexplained
that no other issues where scheduled to be discussed by the Planning Conunission but took questions and held a short discussion
concerning zoning, SEPA, and availability ofpublic information.

Chairman Quinnell addressed the agenda:

C. Agenda Change None

D. Communications

1. Oral-

Chairman Quinnell: "This is a public meeting. Ifyou wish to address the Commission concerning any matter that is not on the agenda,
you may do so now. Please Come forward to the podium, stating your name and address for the record. The Chairman reserves the
right to place a time limit on each person asking to be heard."

Mr. Worby, 200 Weems Way, addressed concerns about municipal code complexities, language and zoning.

Mr. Davison explained the state Growth Management Act and how the Council revisited the Comprehensive Plan in 2005. At that
time the zoning code was changed to permit duplexes in the R-lzone, however, it did not carry over to the table. Mr. Davison stated
that the Hearing Examiner had suggested that the table and the text should match.

Mr. Davison and Mr. Worby continued to discuss the Growth Management Act, duplexes and zoning.

Mr. Worby suggested an impact fee on all new construction would help support the local schools.

Mr. Davison explained that an impact fee was once suggested but that it had not been implemented for certain reasons.

Mr. Worby, Mr. Davison and the Commissioners discussed the practicality of an impact fee and how it could be used.

Chairman Quinnell asked if anyone else would like to speak.

Dr. Richard Weller, 50 Herlou Place, addressed concerns about the SEPA process and what warrants additional studies.

Mr. Davison discussed the SEPA process and what affected agencies the report is sent to. He stated that any comments that come in
were addressed by the City Administrator. After a comment period, the administrator can revise the determination if need be. Mr.
Davison stated that SEPA is an administrative ftmction.

Chairman Quinnell asked if anyone else would like to speak.

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14



Mr. Stan Taylor, 50 Weems Way, expressed concerns about a 20 foot wide road in the Planned Development presentedby Mr.
Sample that would not be maintained by the city.

Chairman Quinnell responded that with all due respect that was not on the Agenda.

Commissioner Torkelson responded that Mr. Davison had covered that issue.

Chairman Quinnell closed the session oforal communication.

2 Written - None

E. Approval ofMinutes

1. October 27, 2014 minutes:

Chairman Quinnell requested an approval, disapproval or corrections of the October 27, 2014 minutes.

Commissioner Torkelson motioned to approve the minutes.

Commissioner Smith seconded the motion.

Chairman Quinnell called for a voice vote and the minutes were passed with a vote of3-0.

F. Public Hearing

1. Old Business - None

2. New Business - None

G: General Business

1. Old Business- None

2. New Business-

1. Correct 2 lines of text on page 8 of the June 2014 Minutes.

Chairman Quitmell requested a motion to approve or disapprove the correction.

Commissioner Torkelson motioned to approve the correction to the June 2014 Minutes.

Commissioner Smith seconded the motion.

Chairman Quinnell called for a voice vote and the correction was passed with a vote of5-0.

2. Selah Mimicipal Code, Title 10 Chapter 10.28

Mr. Davison presented the staff report and the attachments:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

STAFF REPORT
(Prepared October 31,2014)

(Public hearing November 4,2014)

FILE NO.: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 2014-01

PROPOSAL: Amend SelahMtmicipalCode,Title 10,Chapter 10.28,Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 RegulatoryNotes

PROPONENT:City ofSelah Planning Department

PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES II/04/I4



HISTORY: Selah Municipal Code, Title 10 28, initially created in 2004.

SURROUNDING LAND USE: Not applicable as the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments would apply throughout the
municipality.

VICINITY ZONING: Not applicable as the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments would apply throughout the municipality.

2005 CITY OF SELAH URBAN GROWTH AREA COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN:

Applicable Goals and Policies:

Policy LUGM 3.2:.Direct development to areas where infrastructure (water, sewer and street) is either present, can be easily
extended, or is planned to be extended.

APPLICABLITY: Tlie proposed zoning ordinance text amendments would further the Housing Goals within the municipality and provide
for a mixture of housing types as contemplated in SMC. Title 10.12.040.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments to Selah Municipal Code Title 10.Chapter
10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes to implement SMC, Title 10.12.040. This recommendation is
supported by a recommendation by the Hearing Examiner.

CHAPTER 10.28

PERMITTED, ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONDITIONAL USES
TABLE A-5

See Chapter 10.06.020 for an explanation ofUse Categories

CITY OF SELAH ZONING ORDINANCE, TITLE 10, CHAPTER 28, TABLE A-5

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT

MINING / REFINING / OFF-SITE

HAZARDOUS WASTE

TREATMENT

Asphalt, roofing material manufacture, rock crushing

Mining*, including sand and gravel pits

Off site hazardous waste treatment and storage facilities*

RESIDENTIAL

Accessory structure, use or building'

Detached single family dwelling*

Manufactured home*/Mobile home* (See 10,08,140)

Two family dwelling (duplex) • (.See 10.28.040(1])

Multiple family dwelling*; 0-5 QUA

<6-12DUA

> 12 QUA

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14

LDSF



Manufactured home parks* (See I0.28.040[e])
3

Retirement apartments
2 1

Homeoccupations* (Sec I0.28.040[o])

Minor Home Occupations* (See I0.28.040[o]) 1 1 1 1 1 1

Major HomeOccupations* (See I0.28.040[o]) 2 2 2 2 2 1

CHAPTER 10.12

ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL TR-D ZONING DISTRICT

Sections:

10.12.010 Purpose.
10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.

10.12.030 Lot size.

10.12.040 Designated two family residential tots.

10.12.010 Purpose. The One-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District is established to
provide for single family residential development where urban governmental services are
currently available or will be extended by the proponent to facilitate development at no public
cost.

Specifically, the intent of this district is to:

(1) Provide for an orderly, phased transition from vacant or partially developed land
to single family residential development;

(2) Facilitate coordinated and collaborative public infrastructure investment;

(3) Require individual lot coimections to municipal water and sewer systems;

(4) Require developments to meet the City's minimum urban development standards;

(5) Particular emphasis shall be given to ensuring that R-1 uses and land divisions
will facilitate future urban development and extension of utilities.

10.12.020 Class 1 Permitted. Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses.

Class 1 Permitted, Class 2 Administrative and Class 3 Conditional Uses as listed in Chapter
10.28, Table A.

PLANNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14



10.12.030 Lot size.

(1) The minimum lot size requirements for any newly created lot (including lot line adjustments)
in this district are progressive based on slope and utility provisions:

Slope Water and Sewage Svstem Minimum lot size

< 10% Municipal water and
sewage system 8,000 sq.ft.

> 10% Municipal water and
<15% sewage system 10,000 sq.ft.

>15% Municipal water and
< 20% sewage system 1/2 acre

> 20% Municipal water and
< 25% sewage system 1 acre

> 25% 5 acres

(2) Subdivision designs shall ensure that adequate setbacks, buffering ofadjoining uses and
sensitivity to physical features are achieved. Lot sizes shall be increased to accommodate
specific uses, lot coverage, setbacks, access, landscaping and other requirements as provided in
this title.

10.12.040 Designated two family residential lots. Within a proposed land division of
ten (10) or more lots ten (10) percent of the lots may be designated for a future two family
dwelling. The proposed lot(s) shall be considered by the reviewing body and, once the lot
location(s) are approved, the lot(s) shall be clearly identified on the recorded subdivision
providing public disclosure ofsaid approval.

Careful consideration ofadjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring
harmonious compatibility.

The minimum lot size requirement of any lot(s) designated for a future two family
dwelling shall be a minimum of 9,000 sq. ft. or such minimum lot size based on slope specified
In Section 10.12.030.

Existing text in theOne-Family Residential (R-1) zone
Proposed amendment of existing textin theOne-Family Residential (R-1) zone

Chairman Quiimell asked if the Council was catching the table up with the verbiage that was drafted in 2004.

Mr. Davison stated that this created continuity between the table, the text and the regulatory notes.

PLANNING COMMISSION 5
MINUTES II/04/I4



Commissioner Torkelson: "This was reviewed by the hearing examiner?"

Mr. Davison stated that this was reviewed by the Hearing Examiner and an application was rejected because there
was no continuitybetween the text and the table. All this does is correct that and allow the Hearing Examiner to
consider it.

Commissioner Miller asked "There is no requirement that a lot designated for a duplex has to be used for duplex but
it gives them the option?"

Mr. Davison stated yes it gives them the option but it does not mean the Hearing Examiner will approve it.

Commissioner Torkelson asked "Did Mr. Noe look this over?"

Mr. Davison stated that Mr. Noe had looked it over.

Commissioner Smith asked why they proposed putting an R-2 in an R-1 zone. Why put it out there in the first place?

Mr. Davison stated that the Growth Management Act wanted to see a variety of housing and densities. This was a
state goal.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any other questions or comments. He opened the discussion to the public and
asked if there were any proponents /opponents that would like to speak.

Mr. Worby, 200 Weems Way, stated his objections to R-2 housing in an R-1 zone.

Commissioner Miller and Mr. Worby debated the issue.

Commissioner Smith stated that in the future the public would still have the option to oppose a planned development
that used a duplex in an R-1 zone.

All Commissioners and Mr. Worby discussed the process a Planned Development goes thru to get approval.

Mr. Aaron Thomas, 111 Herlou Dr., expressed his concem that developers were deciding what was good for the
community and not the City Coimcil and that it diminished the community strength.

Commissioner Torkelson: The developer still has to go through the City Council to get approval and the Council can
still turn them down.

Commissioner Miller explained that there are many different types of living arrangement that this type of housing
would work for (Accessibility).

Mr. Thomas: Still opposed to it.

Commissioner Smith explained that there are 2 different entities that look at planned developments and that the
public would still have an opportunity to voice their opinion.

Mr. Mark Weller, 110 Lyle Loop, expressed concem that people are not being heard.

Conunissioner Torkelson explained that people were being encouraged to attend the open public meetings.

Mr. Thompson was concemed that the best interests of the public, those currently living here, were not being heard.

Mr. John Richards, 65 Lyle Ave., was concemed because the 10.28 tables didn't list Planned Development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that this ordnance and Plaimed Development where two different sectiotis of the
code. What is being dealt with is a chart did not fit the ordinance; we were trying to make coincide.

PLANNING COMMISSION 6
MINUTES 11/04/14



Mr. Richardsexpressed concern about Planned DevelopmentZoning and that current zoning may not be the same.

Commissioner Miller stated that the Planning Commission considers the impact ofa development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that the density will be the same or less with a Planned Development.

Mr. Worby asked ifa duplex could be put in an R-1 if it is a Planned Development.

Commissioner Torkelson stated a Planned Development and an R-1 are never the same.

Mr. Davison explained the comprehensive plan, zoning and density.

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Torkelson, Commissioner Miller and Mr. Worby about planned
developments and density.

Mr. Davison stated that a site plan is fixed. If it is to be changed at any time it has to be reviewed.

Commissioner Miller and Commissioner Torkelson tried to clarify density for Mr. Worby.

Katie Fountaine, 510 Southern Ave., stated she opposed any code adjustment that would increase the density of
housing. She was concerned that home ownership may not be a priority.

Chairman Quinnell: Asked if anyone else would like to speak.

Tisha Busey, 1312 City Reservoir Rd., questioned what the level of review was for allowing duplexes in R-1 zones.

Mr. Davison stated that it was a Level 1 review and is also reviewed by Code Enforcement.

Mrs. Busey asked if there were different things that had different levels ofreview.

Commissioner Miller stated that in a new development it gives the developer an option to designate one in ten for
duplex use.

Mrs. Busey asked if this would be automatic and not go before review.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that because there were ten lots in play it was a long plat that it would go before the
Hearing Examiner and a public hearing before it went to counsil.

Commissioner Miller stated that this was just the opening first step and that there were other possibilities.

Mr. Davison explained the process that the developer goes through to get approval.

Mrs. Busey stated that she had forgotten that this was for 10 lots or more. She did understand that it could be useful
as a buffer to hubs ofgreater activity.

Mr. Davisonstated that this was useful in heavy traffic areas. Mr. Davison stated that a short plat goes to the hearing
examiner, public hearing and then to council for approval.

Mrs. Busey was concerned that there was a breakdown ofcommunication between the public and the city.

Mr. Bill Eller, 11 Terry Place, stated he is opposed to R-2 in an R-1 zone. He stated he would like this removed from
the code.

Chairman Quiimell Closedthe publiccommentsessionand proceededwithSelah Municipal Code, Title 10,
Chapter 10.28.
PLANNING COMMISSION 7
MINUTES 11/04/14



Commissioner Smith asked if the Commissioneis could remove this section of the code.

Commissioner Quinnell asked if the Commissioners could remove 10.040 at this time.

Mr. Davison stated that it could not be done at this time. Another public hearing would be needed to re 10.040 from
the code.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that this zoning amendment would be the perfect blend if it was done in the right
circumstances.

Commissioner Miller stated that the Plaiuied development with duplexes had to be designated upfront.

Commissioner Torkelson stated that if 10.040 was used it would still be discussed.

Commissioner Smith asked if additional language could be added to 10.12.040 to make sure due diligence was
followed.

Mr. Davison explained that duplexes in an R-1 zone have to be designated and still it could be denied.

Chairman Quinnell stated the safety process was there.

Mr. Davison agreed that the safety process was there and if the City Council or the Hearing Examiner thought
something was wrong they could remand it back.

Commissioner Miller stated the he sees the safety net and that duplexes are not a bad thing.

Chairman Quinnell asked if there were any comments from the public.

Mr. Davison asked Commissioner Smith what kind of language she would like added.

Commissioner Smith stated something to the effect that consideration to the surrounding area... (Written word given
to Mr. Davison).

Commissioner Torkelson stated he thought it would take care of its self.

Chairman Quinnell stated that he did not know ifadditional language was necessary but it couldn't hurt.

Commissioner Smith stated that it would give her piece of mind.

Commissioner Quinnell read the finding and decision:

CITY OF SELAH PLANNING COMMISSION

FINDINGS AND DECISION

THIS MATTER having come on for public hearing before the City of Selah Planning Commission on November 4,
2014, following a remand from the Selah City Council for further consideration. The Commission is reconsidering
zoning ordinance text amendments #2014-01 to Selah Mimicipal Code Title 10, (Zoning Ordinance), Chapter 10.28,
Table A-5 and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Note (1).

The members of the Commission present were MILLER. PENDLETON. QUINNELL. TORKELSON and
SMITH.

Legal notification pursuant to Selah Municipal Code was given on the 26th day ofOctober 2014. All persons present
were given the opportimity to speak for or against the proposed text amendments.

PIj\NNING commission 8
MINUTES 11/04/14



ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT FINDINGS

Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies

1. The proposed zoning ordinance textamendments will or will not,as indicated below, further the
following goalsand their underlying policiesof the 2005 Cityof SelahUrban GrowthArea Comprehensive
Plan.

WILL WILL NOT

GOAL FURTHER FURTHER N/A

a. Promote orderly growth XX

b. Avoid incompatible land uses XX

c. Encourage the provision of
housing to meet the needs of
all segments of the community XX

d. Preserve natural resources XX

e. Protect against flooding
and drainage problems XX

f. Maintain and improve air
and water quality XX

g. Maintain an efficient
transportation system XX

h. Provide efficient and

effective public services
at the lowest possible
cost XX

CHANGED CIRCUMSTANCES

The Planning Commission fmds THE FOLLOWING CHANGES in circumstances which
justifies the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment:

The initial adoption ofSelah Municipal Code Title 10, Chapter 10.28 did not provide any
reference in Title 10, Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A or Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes to the
provision of Chapter 10.12.040, which would permit duplexes on specifically designated lots
within new subdivisions zoned One Family Residential (R-1) The original purpose ofChapter
10.12.040 was to create a diversity ofhousing structures and promote affordable housing within
the One Family Residential (R-1) zone. The Commission finds that with continued population
growth there is a need to provide for greater zoning flexibility when developing property. Said text
amendments are in furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare of the people
within the City of Selah.

NEED FOR THE PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT
PUiNNING COMMISSION

MINUTES 11/04/14



3. The Planning Commission FINDS lliat within the City of Sctah and within Sclah Municipal Code
Title 10 there is a dentonstrated and/or recognized need to expand the opportunity and flexibility
of Chapter 10.28, Table 5-A and Chapter 10.28.040 Regulatory Notes.

PUBLIC OPINION

4, The public testimony that was offered was IN OPPOSITION OF the proposed text amendments.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

5. The Planning Commission finds that environmental review lias been completed on the proposal
and further finds that such environmental review was ADEQUATE.

CONTROLLING FACTORS

The Planning Commission dctennines that ALL OF THE ABOVE findings to be
controlling factors in its deliberations on the proposed zoning ordinance text
amendments.

DECISION

The Planning Commission, based upon the aforementioned findings and controlling factors, finds that the
proposed zoning ordinance text amendments IS in furtherance of the public health, safety and general
welfare of the people; therefore, the proposed zoning ordinance text amendments should be APPROVED
and additional amendatory language is to be added to Chapter 10.12.040:

Careful consideration of adjacent properties by the Hearing Examiner shall be made ensuring
harmonious compatibility.

Motion to APPROVE by: SMITH Seconded by: l ORKELSON

Vote: S to 0

H. Renorts/Aimouncemcnis

1. Chairman -

2. Commissioners -.

3. Slaff-

I. Adioumment

Chairman Quinnell asked for a motion to adjourn. Commissioner MUter moved to adjourn and Commissioner
Torkelson seconded the motion. The meeting was adjourned at7^29 lim witli a voice vote of5-0.

PLANNING COMMISSION 10
MINUTES 11/04/14

Chairman


